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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing Director)
Albert Tong (Vice-Chairman)

Tong Chi Kar Charles (Vice-Chairman)
Yeung Kam Hoi

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar
Lee Chan Fai
Sean S ] Wang

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lee Yuen Han

REGISTERED OFFICE
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IN HONG KONG
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Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2848-1668
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SHARE REGISTRAR IN HONG KONG
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Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2980-1333

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Bank of China Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

SOLICITORS

Baker & McKenzie

Zhong Lun Law Firm

Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co.
Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo

SHARE LISTING

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code: 258

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Please write to the Company
at its principal place of business in Hong Kong, or
by fax at (852) 2845-0341 or

email to ir@tomson.com.hk

Website:  http://www.tomson.com.hk
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GENERAL OVERVIEW

In respect of the consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31st
December, 2017, the Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”) is pleased to report a consolidated profit after taxation
attributable to shareholders of the Company of HK$1,255,486,000
(2016: HK$876,256,000). This represents an increase of
approximately 43.28% compared with the year 2016. Basic earnings
per share amounted to 69.44 HK cents (2016: 52.87 HK cents).

This improvement in the results of the Group was principally
attributable to the recognition of a one-off gain in the total
amount of HK$1,075,148,000 on disposal of a joint venture and
subsidiaries of the Group which were engaged in property
development in Tianjin of the People’s Republic of China
(“China”).

Subsequent to the completion of the disposal of subsidiaries in
Tianjin in the second half of 2017, gross proceeds from operations
of the Group dropped during the year under review, unlike the year
2016 when sale proceeds from the property projects in Tianjin and
the Macau Special Administrative Region (“Macau”) of China were
recognized after completion of construction and upon delivery of
units sold to the buyers. Nevertheless, the Group recorded a gross

profit of HK$1,371,064,000 (2016: HK$1,900,130,000).

There was an increase in return on securities investment for the
year 2017 due to receipt of dividends of HK$86,498,000 (2016:
HK$30,695,000) from both listed and unlisted long-term
investments and by recording a net gain in investments held for
trading of HK$10,461,000 (2016: HK$8,942,000).

In addition, there was an unrealized gain on fair value changes of
investment properties of the Group in Shanghai of China of
HK$154,862,000 (2016: HK$554,534,000) arising from market
valuation as at the end of the year under review pursuant to applicable
accounting standards. Excluding the said unrealized gain, the Group
reported an operating profit before taxation of HK$2,234,167,000 for
the year under review (2016: HK$1,199,062,000).

o PR W i B 3

BE 52

AR 0N R R LB g A B (AR A4 )
éﬁi:%~t$+*ﬂ +—HIEEE
ZEHBES  ARAEFR ( F%%EJ

JOR SR 5 AR 2N ) B R A B B AR AR B U

F £51,255,486,0004 7C (& /\E :
876,256,000% JC) > WL R RN T — K
A [F] J 48 = 4943.28% o B I FE AR B R A
69.44 WAl (=T — 84 52,878 11l)

A B 2 AR T O B i R R R B
A AL B — R A G A I E A F R
Z — W %5 A 4£1,075,148,0005 JT
HoZEFEL AN ENRILFE ([

1) KT AE S W) SE 8k 36 -
BEEAE —F —LE T FFZRHERX

FET 2 B A\ > A AR A AR R
2R AR AR N R > A R AR
TE % — 75 AF Bl A B R T B P R R
ATl (1 %ﬂFﬂJ ) ZWMEEBAER T 2%
3% B A A AT T B R AR T DAE R B
(R = (1 A N Y > - RS |
1,371,064,000% 70 (=& — /N 4F ¢
1,900,130,000% 7C) °

TE-LFEB LG Z WA g
ALEEH BT LI TR 8CE SO
5.86,498,000% Jo (= F — N F ¢
30,695,000 7C) - M Bk 15 F5 B 7 E ik 4
810,461,000 o6 (= F — /N 4F ¢
8,942,000% JC) °

WAL > AR BE R 2 gt e A A ] AR
EREALE A TE EBTHZREY
SEEAT T 35 A (8 Bk A5 1 (8 58 ) Jor 8 AF
2 K 5B R F5154,862,0004 06 (- F
— N 554,534,000 JC) © il A EF KR
bl A A B A o A A B [ A R B
5 B B i 46 45 5 F12,234,167,00085 7T (-
E—NF 1 1,199,062,00045 T6) ©

Annual Report 2017 4 4E4R



Management Discussion and Analysis
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DIVIDEND

To expedite dividend payment to the shareholders of the
Company, the Board has declared an interim dividend (instead
of recommending a final dividend) of 43 HK cents per share for
the year ended 31st December, 2017 (2016: 43 HK cents per
share) payable to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 8th May, 2018
(the “Record Date”). Sharcholders will be given an option to
elect to receive shares of HK$0.50 each in the capital of the
Company credited as fully paid in lieu of cash in respect of all or

part of the interim dividend (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme will be subject to the consent of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) to grant listing of and permission to deal in the new
shares of the Company to be allotted thereunder. For the
purpose of determining the number of new shares of the
Company to be allotted under the Scrip Dividend Scheme, the
market value of a new share will be calculated as an amount
equal to 95% of the average of the closing prices per share of the
Company traded on the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive
trading days up to and including the Record Date. A circular
that gives full details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme, together
with a form of election, will be sent to the sharecholders of the
Company in due course. Dividend warrants and/or share
certificates for the scrip dividend are expected to be despatched
on Thursday, 14th June, 2018.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The Mainland of China is the base of the Group’s major
operations. Other than the gain on disposal of the joint venture
and subsidiaries, property development and investment business
was the principal source of the Group’s operating profit for the
year ended 31st December, 2017.

As a result of recognition of sale proceeds of the Group’s
property projects in Shanghai, Tianjin and Macau, the property
development and trading segment was the primary profit
contributor of the Group and this generated a segment profit of
HK$965,497,000 (2016: HK$1,240,707,000).
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Property investment segment in Shanghai was the secondary
profit maker of the Group by contributing a segment profit of
HK$328,102,000 (2016: HK$762,978,000), which was derived
from the steady recurrent rental and management income from
the investment properties of the Group as well as the unrealized
gain on fair value changes of those investment properties upon

revaluation at the year-end.

Securities trading business in the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“Hong Kong”) of China reported a net gain of
HK$10,461,000 (2016: HK$8,942,000) and was the tertiary profit

contributor of the Group.

The other business segments of the Group reported immaterial

losses during the year under review.

Property Development and Investment

Property development and investment remained the core
business of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2017
and contributed a total profit of HK$1,293,599,000 (2016:
HK$2,003,685,000). There was a decrease in sale proceeds that
could be recognized during the year under review and this
business segment generated total revenue of HK$2,058,882,000
which accounted for approximately 94.99% of the gross proceeds
from operations of the Group for the year 2017. Projects in
Pudong of Shanghai accounted for approximately 45.92% of the
gross proceeds from operations of the Group and became the
primary source of revenue whereas the project in Tianjin was the
secondary source of revenue and accounted for approximately
33.45%. The project in Macau is the tertiary source of revenue
and accounted for approximately 15.62% of the gross proceeds
from operations of the Group. In addition, an unrealized gain on
fair value changes of the investment properties of the Group in
Shanghai of HK$154,862,000 was recorded at the year-end date.
Tomson Riviera was the prime source of profit of the Group in
2017.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Tomson Riviera, Shanghai

Tomson Riviera is a notable high-rise residential development
along the riverfront of Lujiazui of Pudong and right opposite the
Bund. There are four residential towers, and based on the
business strategy of the Group, two residential towers are
earmarked for sale while the other two towers are retained for

leasing.

As at 31st December, 2017, the total residential gross floor area
available for sale of Towers A and C amounted to approximately
10,200 square meters while of the total residential gross floor
area of Towers B and D of approximately 58,400 square meters,

about 67% were leased.

For the year 2017, total revenue of HK$785.49 million was
recognized and this accounted for approximately 36.24% of the
gross proceeds from operations of the Group. The revenue was
principally attributable to sale proceeds and the rest was derived
from rental income and management fee. The Group also
recorded an unrealized gain on fair value changes of this property
of HK$112.72 million as at the year-end date. Sale deposits of
HK$207.88 million were credited to the Group as at the end of
the year under review and such amount is expected to be

recognized in 2018.

TOMSON RIVIERA
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Tomson Riviera Garden, Shanghai

Tomson Riviera Garden is a low-density residential project of
the Group adjacent to Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club in
Sanba River District of Pudong and the Group holds a 70%

interest in this project.

Development of the whole project has been completed in three
phases and all the residential units were sold out. Total
recognized revenue for the year 2017, comprising sale proceeds,
rental income and management fee, amounted to HK$85.13
million and this accounted for approximately 3.93% of the gross
proceeds from operations of the Group. Sale proceeds of Phase 3

were the principal source of the said revenue.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Commercial and Industrial Buildings, Shanghai

Rental income and management fee from the Group’s
commercial and industrial property portfolio in Pudong, which
comprised, inter alia, Tomson Commercial Building, Tomson
International Trade Building, Tomson Waigaoqgiao Industrial
Park, the commercial podium of Tomson Business Centre and
the office premises on the entire 72nd Floor of Shanghai World
Financial Centre, provided a steady recurrent revenue of
HK$122.19 million to the Group and this accounted for
approximately 5.64% of the gross proceeds from operations of
the Group for the year 2017. The Group also recorded an
unrealized gain on fair value changes of the aforesaid investment
properties of HK$42.14 million in the annual results of the

Group for the year under review.
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Miscellaneous Residential Development in Shanghai

Tomson Golf Villas and Garden have been developed in phases
around the periphery of Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club in
Pudong since 1996 and there are now less than 10 residential
units available for sale. During the year under review, the
proceeds generated were insignificant and were from sale of car
parking spaces and leasing of residential units, which accounted
for approximately 0.11% of the gross proceeds from operations

of the Group.

The Group also holds less than 10 car parking spaces at Xingguo
Garden, the sole residential development of the Group in Puxi,

for sale.

TOMSON GOLF VILLAS AND GARDEN
N PNIE &

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Jinqiao-Zhangjiang Project, Shanghai

In September 2010, the Company acquired through a
wholly-owned subsidiary the land use rights of a plot of land
with a site area of approximately 300,700 square meters (the
“Tomson Portion”) located in Jingiao-Zhangjiang District of
Pudong and adjacent to Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club.
Vacant possession of over 80% of the site area of the Tomson
Portion has been delivered to the Group in phases but delivery
of the last phase of the Tomson Portion (“Phase 7”) did not take
place before the end of 2016 as agreed.

Initial plans called for the Tomson Portion to be developed into
a low-density residential development in phases. The first phase
of the project (“Phase 17) will comprise 43 low-density

residential units with total saleable gross floor area of
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approximately 16,000 square meters, a club house and ancillary
facilities. The superstructure of the residential units had been
topped out in December 2014 but completion of construction
works will be deferred pending the construction of the club

house and ancillary facilities.

In January 2013, the said wholly-owned subsidiary entered into
a conditional framework agreement to acquire the land use rights
of a plot of land with a site area of approximately 422,174.6
square meters (the “Sports Portion”) for landscaping and sports
facilities purposes and a residential development project (the
“Development Project”) on a plot of land with a site area of
approximately 28,286.2 square meters in Jingiao-Zhangjiang
District of Pudong. As these two plots of land are intermingled
with the Tomson Portion, the Group had intended to
incorporate these land lots into the master development plan of
the Tomson Portion. The Group entered into a supplemental
agreement in July 2016 to cancel the inter-conditional
requirement in respect of the completion of the transfers of the
land use rights of the Sports Portion and the Development
Project to facilitate the acquisition of the Development Project
by the Group which was subsequently completed in 2016.
Construction works on the Development Project have been put

on hold pending clearance of related planning matters.

On 11th January, 2017, Pudong New Area Planning and Land
Authority of Shanghai published on its website a public notice
with respect to the proposed adjustment and change to
Zhangjiabang Wedge-shaped Green Space Development Plan
which covers the portion located in Jinqiao-Zhangjiang District
of Pudong and north of a stream named Zhangjiabang (the
“Northern Portion”), within which the Tomson Portion, the
Development Project and the Sports Portion are located
(“Proposed Planning Changes”). Having conducted a
preliminary review and analysis of the Proposed Planning
Changes, the Company noted that the Proposed Planning
Changes, if effected, might involve the following: (i) the original
site over which Phase 7 is located would not be delivered to the
Group and instead, another piece of land in the Northern
Portion might be allocated to the Group in substitution and as
replacement; (ii) while the location of Phase 1 and the
Development Project would remain unchanged, there might be
an adjustment and relocation of the other plots forming the
Tomson Portion (which are originally located along the

boundaries and in the centre of the Northern Portion) such that

Tomson Group Limited % i 4E B 4 FR /A 7]

K)o~ B Kl E R e T A
ER-F—4E+ T ERAMEE
e A 5 TR M A B P QB R AR
J7 S8 e

WE—ZAE—H > Bk 2 E K E A FE]
FIOL T — 10 A A O HE B2 foh o DA i I o7
A TR B 4 K — 5% VL Hb [ 7 — I s B 1 R
# F422,174.6F Kk L (THEE A
W)z LA UEARBIREE
At 2 o B AE [T — 1 R TR A 2
28,286.2° 7 Kz b A EE R IH
H ([ZRIEH] o B aZ% m i b 3 5135
B b 3 AH B 2R 4 R A% - A AR A B UL
S5 b AN A W b 2 A SR A o
AR TN A &Rk
DLBRCYE A B 52 B R S E O M bl
FARE S 88 R TH B 2 5 B A3 A 7 {8
AL EEREH > I HEER -F
—NETER M o BFRIEH 2 @E LR
T R 4 B DL Rr P AR BB ) I o

o E-EFE A+t —H > BigEATER
T 1 K R e A R RO AR il R B A
o R B AR R U T e 2
PEE SRR B 2 20 > B2 IR 2 R
AR — R LI e — R4 Zy sk KB
T7 7 A T I A f) R (AL s BR ) -
PR - BRI SR T b R
st Bk (AR5 Bk )) o KRB A
SRR A R A > AR
FZE - BB R A E AT > W REW
B VLR 7 T ¢ (1) 5 £ BT LR 22 D B
A G A AL > A stz UL
WL Z 5 — R LRt T AL E - L
WO S B 4 b B 5 (i) 7 58 — M B B
THH 2 A B RS 5 B R B AR
b B 2 FC A i B (R 55 B R 2 L
YL 2 o 0 [ K oo [ EA)) AT AR 8 AR
R B e B8 5 DA bl M BRI BELER —
e B JIEH & 0 > B AL B A = i
A PR DL i T A S E AR T R R



the aforesaid plots will be consolidated with Phase 1 and the
Development Project to become three combined plots within the
Northern Portion to be allocated to the Group for residential
development (“Revised Tomson Residential Development”); (iii)
if the aforesaid relocation were to materialize, the Revised
Tomson Residential Development would be relocated farther
away from the high voltage pylons running along the northern
side of the original Tomson Portion; (iv) there might be a slight
decrease of 592.2 square meters regarding the aggregate site area
of the Revised Tomson Residential Development; and (v) the
original Sports Portion might not be available for delivery to the
Group because all the remaining areas surrounding the Revised
Tomson Residential Development within the Northern Portion
will be re-categorized as “public greenery and sports lands”. In
August 2017, the municipal government of Shanghai issued its
consent in principle to the Proposed Planning Changes. The
Group and the contracting party have been collaborating closely
with the aim of putting into effect the changes under the
Proposed Planning Changes in the best interests of all parties

concerned.

Phase 2 of Jinwan Plaza, Tianjin

In 2010, the Group participated in the development of phase
two of Jinwan Plaza in the central area of Heping District,
Tianjin, by holding a 75% equity interest in Tianjin Jinwan Real
Estate Development Co., Limited (“Jinwan Real Estate”) and a
51% equity interest in Tianjin Jinwan Property Co., Limited
(“Jinwan Property”). There are 3 high-rise buildings for
residential, commercial and office purposes in phase two of

Jinwan Plaza.

To realize the investment potential of these projects, the Group
respectively entered into an agreement on 24th October, 2016 to
dispose of the 51% equity interest in Jinwan Property to an
unrelated third party at a cash consideration of RMB1,173.00
million and an agreement on 30th June, 2017 to dispose of the
100% equity interest in Tianjin Tomson Development Co,
Limited (“Tianjin Tomson”), which in turn held the 75% equity
interest in Jinwan Real Estate, to an unrelated third party at a
cash consideration of RMB2,015.62 million. The purchaser of
Tianjin Tomson also provided funds in the amount of
RMB344.38 million to Tianjin Tomson for its repayment of the

loan owed to the Group.
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PHASE 2 OF JINWAN PLAZA
ARG M

The disposal of the interest in Jinwan Property was completed in
January 2017 and a gain of HK$523,713,000 was recognized
whilst the disposal of the interest in Tianjin Tomson was
completed in August 2017 and a gain of HK$551,435,000 was

recognized. The Group no longer has any investment in Tianjin.

Before the disposal of the interest in Tianjin Tomson, revenue in
the total amount of HK$724.98 million was recognized in the
consolidated results of the Group for the year under review from
the sale proceeds and rental income of Tomson Riviera Tianjin,
a residential development of Jinwan Real Estate, and this
accounted for approximately 33.45% of the gross proceeds from

operations of the Group.

One Penha Hill, Macau

The Group holds a 70% interest in the development of a luxury
residential condominium at Penha Hill within a designated
World Heritage Zone of Macau. The development project is
named “One Penha Hill” and consists of 63 residential units in
four apartment blocks with a club house, swimming pool, roof

terrace and car parking spaces.

ONE PENHA HILL
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This project, which was one of the major sources of operating
profit of the Group for the year under review, generated revenue
of HK$338.66 million and this accounted for approximately
15.62% of the gross proceeds from operations of the Group. Sale
deposits of HK$5.69 million were credited to the Group as at
the end of the year under review and are expected to be
recognized in the annual results of the Group for 2018. As at
31st December, 2017, residential gross floor area of approximately

10,800 square meters were available for sale.

Hospitality and Leisure Industry
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club, Shanghai

Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club, situated in Pudong of
Shanghai, generated revenue of HK$42,674,000, being
approximately 1.97% of the gross proceeds from operations of
the Group, for the year 2017. The revenue was mainly
attributable to golfing activities. Other than annual weekday
membership fee income, there was no sale of membership
debentures in 2017 possibly due to recent social and political
developments and the remaining tenor of the debentures being
less than ten years. As a result, the Club reported a segment loss
of HK$33,734,000 for the year 2017 (2016: HK$31,075,000).

TOMSON SHANGHAI PUDONG GOLF CLUB
G LR ARk
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InterContinental Shanghai Pudong, Shanghai

InterContinental Shanghai Pudong hotel, situated in Lujiazui of
Pudong, Shanghai, reported an average occupancy rate of
approximately 78.73% in 2017. For the year under review,
owing to renovation works in guest rooms on five floors for
around seven months, the revenue had been affected but the
profit was better than expectation. The Group, which holds a
50% interest in the hotel, shared a net profit of HK$12.36
million from this investment for the year 2017 (2016:
HK$13.34 million). To maintain the profitability of the hotel,
the hotel management will continue to focus on controlling
operating costs, increasing marketing efforts on the food and
beverage operations and expanding source of clientele to further

raise the occupancy rate.
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Media and Entertainment Business

The Group set up its film distribution business in 2011 and has
also participated in the production of live entertainment shows.
For the year ended 31st December, 2017, gross revenue received
and receivable from this segment amounted to HK$4,695,000
and this accounted for approximately 0.22% of the Group’s
gross proceeds from operations. The revenue for the year under
review was solely generated from investments in the production
of live entertainment shows, principally local pop concerts and a
segment loss of HK$1,724,000 (2016: HK$3,193,000) was
recorded. The Group intends to continue in participating in

investments in various live performances in 2018.

LIVE ENTERTAINMENT
Bl 3t H

JER R (IR EEARE
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Securities Trading

For the year under review, the Group’s securities trading business in
Hong Kong reported revenue of HK$60,099,000 and this
accounted for approximately 2.77% of the gross proceeds from
operations of the Group. The revenue was derived from sale
proceeds of the trading securities held by the Group and a net gain
in securities investments held for trading of HK$10,461,000 was
recorded (2016: HK$8,942,000).

PVC Operations

The manufacturing operation of PVC pipes and fittings in
Shanghai, in which the Group held a 58% interest, commenced
liquidation in the first quarter of 2013 after the expiry of the
land use rights of the factory lot and the liquidation was
completed in 2017. No revenue was generated from such
operation during the year under review other than a receipt of

the final distribution from this subsidiary in July 2017.

To capitalize on the Group’s established brand and goodwill in
the industry, the Group set up a wholly-owned subsidiary in
Shanghai in mid-2013 to engage in export trade of PVC fittings
and pipes. Market conditions for this business continued to be
challenging and the trading operation reported insignificant
revenue which accounted for approximately 0.05% of the gross
proceeds from operations of the Group for the year under

review.

As a whole, the PVC operations recorded a segment loss of

HK$587,000 for the year 2017 (2016: HK$2,690,000).

Investment Holding

In addition to its own property development projects, the Group
holds a 9.8% interest in the issued shares of Rivera (Holdings)
Limited (“RHL”), a listed company in Hong Kong, as a
long-term investment. RHL is principally engaged in property
development and investment in Shanghai as well as securities
trading and investment in Hong Kong. The Group received
dividends of HK$12,784,000 from RHL during the year under

review and an unrealized gain on change in fair value of the
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investment of HK$5,113,000 was credited to the investment
reserve of the Group as at 31st December, 2017 pursuant to

applicable accounting standards.

The Group also holds a 13.5% interest in the registered capital
of an unlisted associated company of RHL established in
Shanghai as a long-term investment, and that company is
principally engaged in property development and investment in
Shanghai. Dividends of HK$73,714,000 were received during

the year under review.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financing Position

As at 31st December, 2017, total assets of the Group decreased
by approximately 3.99% to HK$21,785,484,000 mainly owing
to the completion of the disposal of subsidiaries during the year.
The equity attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$13,224,128,000 in total, an increase of approximately
16.01% while that per share was HK$7.01, representing an
increase of approximately 5.41% from 2016 which was mainly
attributable to appreciation in value of Renminbi but was partly
offset by the issue of new shares under the Company’s scrip
dividend scheme for the interim dividend for 2016 during the

year under review.

The Group’s operations and investments for the year ended 31st
December, 2017 were funded by cash on hand, and revenue

from operating activities and investing activities.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to HK$3,692,955,000, an increase of
approximately 28.14%. During the year under review, the Group
achieved net cash inflows of HK$1,675,506,000 and
HK$477,585,000 from its operating and investing activities
respectively. After taking into account the net cash outflow of
HK$1,536,483,000 from its financing activities, the Group
recorded a net increase in cash and cash equivalents of
HK$616,608,000 for the year under review (2016:
HK$278,635,000). The net cash inflow was mainly actributable
to the sale proceeds of properties held for sale and net cash
received from disposal of subsidiaries but this was partly offset

by repayment of borrowings during the year under review.
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As at 31st December, 2017, excluding receipts in advance, of the
liabilities of the Group of HK$8,043,949,000 (2016:
HK$8,564,351,000), about 60.32% were taxation under current
liabilities, about 19.61% were deferred tax liabilities, about
10.16% were trade and other payables and accruals while about
9.91% were borrowings. Details of the trade payables,
borrowings and deferred taxation are shown in Notes 27(c), 30
and 31 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year under review on page 150 and pages 154 to 156

respectively.

The Group’s borrowings as at 31st December, 2017 amounted
to HK$797,215,000 (2016: HK$1,790,150,000), equivalent to
6.03% (2016: 15.70%) of the equity attributable to owners of
the Company at the same date. The Group did not employ any
financial instruments for financing and treasury management. All
of the borrowings were under security and subject to floating
interest rates. Of these borrowings, approximately 56.63% were
due for repayment on demand or within one year from the end
of the reporting period, approximately 1.81% were repayable
more than one year but not exceeding two years from the end of
the reporting period, approximately 9.03% were due for
repayment more than two years but not more than five years
from the end of the reporting period, while the remaining
32.53% were due for repayment more than five years from the

end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
in relation to expenditure on properties under development of
HK$153,182,000 (2016: HK$491,941,000) which were
contracted but not provided for. The Group anticipates that
these commitments will be funded from its future operating
revenue, bank borrowings and other sources of finance where

appropriate.

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group recorded a current ratio
of 1.86 times (2016: 1.92 times) and a gearing ratio (total
liabilities to equity attributable to the owners of the Company)
of 62.50% (2016: 90.35%). There was no significant change in
the current ratio while the improvement in the gearing ratio

mainly resulted from repayment of borrowings.
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Charge on Assets

As at 31st December, 2017, assets of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$7,306,461,000 (2016:
HK$6,826,877,000) were pledged for securing banking facilities
of the Group.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in Renminbi, and the liabilities are well covered by
the assets. Recent changes in value of Renminbi may not have
any material adverse impact on the Group’s results and net asset
value. In addition, all of the other assets and liabilities of the
Group are denominated in either Hong Kong Dollar or United
States Dollar. Hence, the Group anticipates that the exchange

risk exposure is manageable.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31st
December, 2017 (2016: Nil).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial situation, operating results and business
prospects may be directly or indirectly affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties including business risks, operational risks,
financial risks and changes of local laws and regulations in the
jurisdictions in which it operates. Information on the estimation
uncertainty, capital risk management and financial risk
management is respectively set out in Notes 5, 32 and 33(b) to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year

under review on pages 112 to 115, and pages 157 to 165.
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Property development and investment is one of the principal
business segments of the Group and price fluctuation is a major
risk that may affect the Group’s results and asset value. The
management holds a positive view of the potential demand for
high-end properties in the Mainland of China and will monitor
closely the marketing and pricing strategies of the Group’s

property projects to maximize the return on investment.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
stated above which are not known to the Group or which may
not be material now but could turn out to be material in the

future.

PROSPECTS

Faced with tightening regulations and directives on the real
estate market imposed by both the local and central governments
of the Mainland and Macau of China, and recent uncertainties
in the global developed economies, market conditions in the
property sector would be rendered even more challenging both
in terms of price levels and transaction volume. The Group will
endeavour to maintain the momentum in its sale and leasing of
the property portfolio in Shanghai and Macau. It is anticipated
that Tomson Riviera and One Penha Hill will be the Group’s
principal source of profit in the year 2018.

The Group has built up its reputation as a developer of high-end
residential properties in the Mainland of China. The central
government of the Mainland recently promulgated certain policy
directives on rental property, but the Group remains optimistic
that, in tandem with the forecast economic growth in the
Mainland, there will continue to be an underlying demand for
properties catering to a high-income middle class and high
net-worth individuals. Investment in Jinqiao-Zhangjiang project
in Pudong, Shanghai represents an important component of the

Group’s strategy.

It is expected that the global and Hong Kong financial markets
will become relatively uncertain in 2018 with the ending of
quantitative easing, possible rise in interest rates and recent
developments in the political and economic environment.
Management will remain cautious in managing the securities
trading portfolio of the Group, with an emphasis on securities

with recurrent yield.
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Whilst property development and investment will remain the
Group’s business focus, the Group will continue to explore and
evaluate prudently other potential investment opportunities.
Nevertheless, it will be the objective of the Group to maintain
an optimum balance in the allocation of its resources both

geographically and in different business segments.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2017, the Group engaged around 550
employees in total in its various offices including Hong Kong
and Shanghai. Total emoluments paid to staff and directors of
the Group during the year under review amounted to
HK$87,829,000. Remuneration and benefit packages are
generally structured with reference to market terms and practice,
as well as individual responsibilities, performance and
qualifications. Discretionary bonus may be paid based on
individual contribution. In addition, the Company has
established a share option scheme pursuant to which the
directors and employees of the Group may be granted options to

subscribe for shares of the Company as a performance incentive.

Taking this opportunity, the Board would like to express its
gratitude to the management and all the staff members of the

Group for their devotion and hard work over the years.

On behalf of the Board

Hsu Feng
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 27th March, 2018

Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining good corporate governance standards
and procedures which emphasize management of high quality,

transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
complied with the code provisions contained therein during the
year ended 31st December, 2017 and up to the date of
publication of the annual report for 2017, except that:

(a) Madam Hsu Feng takes up both the posts of Chairman of
the Board and Managing Director of the Company. While
this is a deviation from the CG Code, dual role leadership
provides the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) with a strong and consistent leadership and
allows for more effective operation of the business. The
Board is of the view that adequate check and balance of
power is in place. Responsibilities for the Company’s daily
business management are shared amongst Madam Hsu and
other members of the executive committee of the Board.
Besides, all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board or appropriate committees of the
Board in accordance with the provisions of the code on risk

management and internal control of the Company;

(b) none of the existing independent non-executive Directors
of the Company are appointed for a specific term, but they
are subject to retirement and re-election at least once every
three years at annual general meetings of the Company
pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company
(the “Articles”);
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(d)

in accordance with the Articles, any Director of the
Company appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company instead of being subject to
election at the first general meeting of the Company after
his/her appointment as stipulated in the CG Code. Such
arrangement not only complies with Appendix 3 to the
Listing Rules but also streamlines the mechanism of
re-election of Directors so that both new Directors
appointed by the Board (either for filling a causal vacancy
or as an additional member) and existing Directors retiring
by rotation shall be subject to re-election at the annual
general meeting for the relevant year. Furthermore,
extraordinary general meetings will be reserved for
considering and approving notifiable/connected transactions
or other corporate actions under the Listing Rules only,
which should enhance efficiency in procedures for

corporate matters; and

the Company has not established a nomination committee
comprising a majority of independent non-executive
Directors as stipulated in the CG Code. This is because
when identifying individuals of the appropriate calibre and
qualification to be Board members and when assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, it is
necessary to have a thorough understanding of the
structure, business strategy and daily operation of the
Company. The participation of executive Directors during
the process is therefore indispensable. Accordingly, the
Board as a whole remains responsible for reviewing its own
structure, size and composition annually, and also for
considering the appointment and re-election of Directors as
well as assessing the independence of independent

non-executive Directors.

THE BOARD

The Board commits itself to acting in the best interests of the

Group and the shareholders. It is accountable to the shareholders

for the long-term performance of the Group, while taking into

consideration the interests of other stakeholders.

(©)

(d)
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The Board is composed of seven members, including four
executive Directors, namely Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and
Managing Director), Mr Albert Tong (Vice-Chairman),
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (Vice-Chairman) and Mr Yeung Kam
Hoi, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr Sean S ]
Wang. All the Directors have signed service contracts or letters
of appointment with the Company which set out the key terms

and conditions of their appointment.

Biographical details of the Directors and relevant relationships
among them together with their respective roles on the Board
and its committees are set out in the Profile of the Directors and

Officers on pages 38 to 42.

The Company recognizes that a diverse board is crucial to the
Board’s performance and development of the Company. The
Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. It believes that
diversity should be viewed from its widest perspective.
Accordingly, selection of candidates to the Board is based on a
range of measurable objectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience and qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of
service, having due regard to the Company’s own business model
and specific needs from time to time. During the year under
review, the Board has conducted an annual review of its structure
and composition at a regular meeting. With the Board members
coming from a variety of business and professional background
and one out of the seven Board members being female, the
Company considers that the Board has an appropriate size and
balanced structure and composition with diverse mix of skills,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate to

the requirements of the Company’s business and development.

There are three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company representing more than one-third of the Board and
two of them have either appropriate professional accounting
qualifications or related financial management expertise as
required by the Listing Rules. The Company has received an
annual written confirmation for the year 2017 from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all of

the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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The Directors have disclosed to the Company the offices held in
other public companies or orgainsations and the time involved
and the Company has received confirmations from each Director
that he/she has devoted sufficient time to perform his/her
responsibilities as a Director and has given sufficient attention to

the affairs of the Company.

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering formulation of corporate strategy, approval of annual and
interim results, changes of members of the Board and its
committees, major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions,
and monitoring and controlling other significant operational and
financial matters of the Group. The independent non-executive
Directors have contributed valuable independent views and
proposals for the Board’s deliberation and decisions. The Board
has established an executive committee, an audit committee and a
remuneration committee (collectively the “Commirttees”) with
clear written terms of reference to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs and to assist in sharing the Board’s
responsibilities. The Committees report regularly to the Board on

their decisions and recommendations.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the management and the management also
provides support to the Board to formulate overall strategic
direction, long term objectives and business plans of the Group.
Both the Board and the management have clearly defined
authorities and responsibilities under various risk management,
internal control and check-and-balance mechanisms. The
management is responsible for implementing the strategies and
plans adopted by the Board and the Committees and assumes full
accountability to the Board for the operation of the Group.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year and as and when
required. Sufficient notices are given to all Directors at least 14
days before the regular Board meetings. All Directors are
consulted whether to include matters in the agenda. Agenda and
accompanying board papers are given to all Directors in a timely
manner before the appointed date of each regular Board meeting.
Drafts and final versions of minutes are circulated to the
Directors for comment and record respectively. During the year
2017, four regular meetings were held by the Board. Besides, a
Vice-Chairman of the Board had an annual meeting in 2017 to
exchange opinions with the independent non-executive Directors

of the Company without the other executive Directors present.
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All members of the Board have been provided with monthly
management updates to keep them up-to-date with material
developments of the Group’s operations, performance, financial
position and prospects. The Board has agreed on a procedure to
enable the Directors to seek independent professional advice
whenever deemed necessary, at the Company’s expense, to assist

them to perform their duties.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of the
discharge of their duties. The insurance coverage is reviewed on

an annual basis.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Company strives to attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance best suited to the needs and interests of the
Group. Good corporate governance is crucial to an orderly and
effective operational system, which will enhance operational
efficiencies, thereby bolstering sharcholders’ value. The Board is
responsible for the corporate governance functions. During the
year ended 31st December, 2017, the Board has discharged the

following corporate governance duties:

(a) review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate

governance;

(b) arrange seminars and briefings to Directors, review and
monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors, details of which are set out
in the paragraph headed “Directors’ Induction and

Continuous Professional Development” in this report;

(c) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
including reviewing the provisions of the code on risk

management and internal control of the Group;

(d) review and monitor code of practice for securities
transactions by the Directors and relevant employees (the
“Code of Practice for Securities Transactions”) and

whistleblowing policy; and

(e) review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
of the CG Code and relevant disclosure in interim and

annual reports.
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Executive Committee

An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) was
established by the Board with specific written terms of reference
in June 2005. The Executive Committee comprises all the
executive Directors of the Company, namely Madam Hsu Feng,
Mr Albert Tong, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and Mr Yeung Kam
Hoi, and Madam Hsu Feng is the chairman of the Executive
Committee. The Executive Committee may convene meetings as
it considers necessary for reviewing and approving, inter alia, any
matters concerning the day-to-day management of the business
of the Company and any matters to be delegated to it by the

Board from time to time.

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
was established by the Board in June 2005 with specific written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company’s website. The
principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management’s remuneration
and the remuneration packages of individual Directors and
senior management of the Company. Mr Cheung Siu Ping,
Oscar, Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr Sean S ] Wang, being all
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, and
Mr Albert Tong, an executive Director of the Company, are
members of the Remuneration Committee while Mr Cheung Siu
Ping, Oscar acts as the chairman of the Remuneration

Committee.

During the year 2017, two meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held for the revision of the remuneration
package of an executive Director and an annual review of the
remuneration policy and packages for all the Directors and
senior management of the Company. Details of the emoluments
paid to the Directors and senior management of the Company
for the year ended 31st December, 2017 are set out in Note 12

to the consolidated financial statements on pages 125 and 126.
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Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) has been set up by
the Board with specific written terms of reference. The Audit
Committee is composed of all the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar,
Mr Lee Chan Fai and Mr Sean S ] Wang. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar who possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualifications as required

under the Listing Rules.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required to
monitor integrity of the financial statements of the Company, to
review significant financial reporting judgements, to evaluate the
overall effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, and to oversee the relationship with the
Company’s auditor (the “Auditor”). The terms of reference of

the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s website.

During the year 2017, the Audit Committee held three meetings
for reviewing the interim and annual financial statements as well
as the financial reporting matters of the Group, evaluating the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
the significant risks faced by the Group and also the adequacy
and effectiveness of internal audit function, considering the
engagement and scope of services of the Auditor and reviewing

the whistleblowing policy.

The Audit Committee concluded that in 2017 the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group were
effective and the internal audit function of the Company was
implemented effectively. The Audit Committee was satisfied
with the related resources of the internal audit function and
the resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and related budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions as well as the implementation,

application and effectiveness of the whistleblowing policy.

In March 2018, the Audit Committee held two meetings to review
the annual consolidated financial statements and the internal audit
report of the Group for 2017 and consider the re-appointment of
the Auditor respectively. On the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, the Board approved the consolidated financial
statements and to propose the re-appointment of the Auditor at
the annual general meeting of the Company for 2018. The Board

also approved the internal audit report.
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Attendance Records at Meetings

The attendance of individual Directors at general meeting,
regular meetings of the Board and meetings of the Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee held during the year ended
31st December, 2017 is set out below:
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Number of meetings attended/held

CHiE RO a®uA
General Remuneration Audit
Meeting Board Committee Committee
Name of Directors wHHEA T YN #HAER FMEEE HEGEEHE
Executive Directors HirES
Madam Hsu Feng fr Wut 1/1 4/4 N/A A F N/A A
(Chairman of the Board and EEVEY 5 3
Managing Director) HHGAEH)
Mr Albert Tong U RaTp s 11 414 12 NAKRER
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) (#HFE R L)
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles R P 1/1 3/4 N/A A4 N/A A A
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) (HF G L)
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi Wi e 1/1 44 NAREA  NAREH
Independent Non-Executive Directors Bk ES
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar RIS 1/1 4/4 212 3/3
(Chairman of the Audit Committee and (HEHZEHER
the Remuneration Committee) HWZEA g L)
Mr Lee Chan Fai B 0/1 414 2/2 3/3
Mr Sean S ] Wang EAalEE 0/1 314 212 3/3

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Articles, new Directors could be elected
by the Company or appointed by the Board. Any Director so
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and the

retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

The Company did not establish a nomination committee
pursuant to the code provisions of the CG Code and the Board
is responsible for reviewing its own structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience of
its members), and identifying, selecting and considering any
appointment or re-election of its own members. The Board is
also responsible for assessing the independence of the

independent non-executive Directors.
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No new Board member was appointed during the year under
review. Mr Yeung Kam Hoi and Mr Sean S ] Wang retired by
rotation and were re-elected at the Company’s annual general

meeting for 2017.

An annual review of the Board structure and composition was
made by the Board during the year under review and the Board
resolved to keep the structure and composition of the Board

unchanged.

In addition, Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Lee
Chan Fai will retire by rotation at the Company’s annual general
meeting for 2018 and offer for re-election at that general

meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

On appointment to the Board, each of the new Directors of the
Company is given a comprehensive orientation package,
including the latest information of the Group, induction into
their responsibilities and duties, terms of reference of the

relevant Committees and other related regulatory requirements.

Throughout the course of their directorship, to keep them
abreast of the latest developments in the legislative or regulatory
environment, the Directors are regularly provided with updates
and briefings on the Listing Rules and other applicable legal and
regulatory requirements. Circulars or guidance notes issued by
various regulatory authorities or organizations, where appropriate,

are given to the Directors for reading and reference.

In order to assist the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development, the Company encourages the
Directors to enroll in a wide range of professional development
seminars and conferences. During the year ended 31st
December, 2017, the Company organized four in-house seminars
on areas of economic development, taxation and corporate

governance so as to help the Directors refresh their knowledge

and skills.

Tomson Group Limited % i 4E B 4 FR /A 7]

P& [ LA BE R A RAT R E R /A e
Wit ok X E DRI R A R F 2 =
F—LFEZ BAREFER G LR
A AL S o

5 3 JA) A (] AR I T B R 2R A
BOEAT AR B AR > SRRk E R A
V&R RS EN

BEAh > b Lt~ T IR SE A R R
S RARN T Z —F— )N R A
FERE LR R ZBR R e
Wi HAT: o

RNl RALEE > fE LT
I EE R IR K B A A i A
SCHE - AL AR A AR B Y OB B R AR
I HE 9 A A~ A B 2 B Y T
Fo LA CH A AR B B B A8 R 9 R o

T (o1 4% o A 9f5 A 9 o 000 () BE 4R A ik
B BRI B0 OB SRR > S )
A CE T BRI e He At ) 2 9 e
B ROR 2 SR AR R A e AT B
M AL A B o T B B S ] (U )
gt TEEMN 2% -

BT B ER S B E SRR AR
) Y i 2 0 A ] R Y S R
JESEDI G S b o MR —F L
FtHA=Zt—HIEFEER  ARFLE
R T RN BRI - R A B AR
PRI BB R SEE G > Dl B &
= T H N S RE



A summary of the continuous professional development in which
the Directors participated during the year ended 31st December,
2017 is as follows:
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Continuing Professional Development

FHEEERRE

Type Subject
Name of Directors wHREA i 30 E ]
Executive Directors HiTES
Madam Hsu Feng & L+ 1,2 A, B
Mr Albert Tong B TR 1,2 A, B
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles GRS 1,2 A, B
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi M 85 1 e A 1,2 A B
Independent Non-Executive Directors L RYAE B R o
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar RIStk 1,2 A, B
Mr Lee Chan Fai 2B SR 1,2 A, B
Mr Sean S ] Wang @l e A 1,2 A, B
Types: R
1:  Attending in-house briefings/training, seminars, conference 1 W RS e B wE B

or forums B e B e

2:  Reading relevant information and updates, and watching 2 BEAREREEHRER > LBE

training webcasts
Subjects:
A:  Subjects relevant to the businesses of the Group

B:  Legal, regulatory, finance and general management updates

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own Code of Practice for
Securities Transactions on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
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The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors of the
Company and each of the Directors has confirmed compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the

Code of Practice for Securities Transactions throughout the year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that
proper risk management and internal control systems are
maintained within the Group and for overseeing the effectiveness
of these systems in order to safeguard the shareholders’
investments and the Group’s assets against misappropriation and
to manage the operational risks. The Company has adopted a
code applicable to the Group in respect of material internal
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and risk management functions since 2005. The code
on risk management and internal control is reviewed by the
Company regularly and modified pursuant to operational

requirements of the Group.

The risk management and internal control systems are intended
to manage, not eliminate, significant risks of failure to achieve
the Group’s business objectives, so they can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.

The operating units of the Group, as the risk owners, go through
the following processes on an ongoing basis and report results to

the management:

(i)  identify their own significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks on the

Group’s business and financial position;
(ii) develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and
(iii) monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the code on risk management and
internal control to ensure that inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information and the
dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently

made.
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An external service provider has been engaged for providing
internal audit services to the Group during the year under

review.

The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to review the
effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal
control of the Group regularly and the Audit Committee held a
meeting in 2017 for that purpose. The Board, based on the
review of the Audit Committee, considers that the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate and the Group has complied with the provisions on
risk management and internal control as set out in the CG Code
and the Group’s code on risk management and internal control
during the year ended 31st December, 2017.

The Board also considers that, after a review made by the Audit
Committee, the Group’s internal audit function was effectively
implemented and adequately resourced with experienced external
service provider in 2017 and the resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and related budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions are

adequate.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company acknowledge that they are
responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for each
financial period. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2017, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently; have made judgements and
estimates that were prudent and reasonable; and have prepared

the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Auditor to the shareholders are to
form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on those
consolidated financial statements and their opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2017 is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 64 to 71.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to
the Group by the Auditor for the year ended 31st December,
2017 amounted to HK$2,808,000 and HK$874,000
respectively. The non-audit services were rendered to review the
indebtedness statement and working capital sufficiency of the
Group in relation to a major transaction of the Company under

the Listing Rules and taxation services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring board
procedures are followed and board proceedings are efficiently
and effectively conducted. The incumbent is also responsible for
apprising the Board of all applicable law, rules, regulations and
corporate governance developments. During the year under
review, the Company Secretary has taken relevant professional

training as required by Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the Company’s
shareholders through various channels including the Company’s
annual general meetings. In 2017, a majority of the Directors of the
Company (including the Chairman of the Board and chairman of
the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee) attended the
annual general meeting of the Company to answer questions from
the shareholders. Representatives of the Auditor also attended that
meeting to answer questions about the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2016.

In order to further enhance communication with the shareholders
of the Company and enable the Company’s shareholders to have
timely and updated information of the Group, the Company has set
up its own website at http://www.tomson.com.hk where corporate
information, interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
business development and other information of the Company are
posted.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) and
Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

(a) Any three shareholders of the Company holding in
aggregate not less than 5% of the total paid up capital of
the Company and having the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company have the right to ask the Board
to convene an EGM by depositing a duly signed requisition
stating the general nature of business(es) to be transacted at
the EGM or the objects of the EGM at the office of the
Company in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
of the People’s Republic of China (“China”) (“Hong
Kong”) at Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing
On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary of the Company.

If within 21 days of deposit of a valid requisition (which
has been duly verified with the share registrar of the
Company) the Board does not proceed to duly convene an

EGM, the requisitionists may themselves convene an EGM.

(b) The procedures for nomination of Directors by the
shareholders of the Company are available on the

Company’s website at http://www.tomson.com.hk.

Procedures for Putting Forward Enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders can direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong.

To the extent that such information of the Group can be made
available to the public, shareholders may at any time put forward
enquiries to the Board through the Company Secretary in
writing by mail to the office of the Company in Hong Kong at
Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong or by e-mail to

ir@tomson.com.hk.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year ended 31st December, 2017 and up to
the date of publication of the annual report for 2017.

CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

The Group pledges itself to contribute to the well-being of the
society. During the year under review, the Group has made
charitable donations to various international and local charitable
organizations established in Hong Kong and the Mainland of
China, including World Vision Hong Kong and Orbis Hong
Kong, to support their activities in the provision of relief against
poverty, education, children sponsorship, health promotion,

animal protection and communal welfare.

The Company has participated in the “Heart to Heart Project”
organized by The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups since
its launch in 2005, to sponsor service projects proposed by
volunteer groups of those schools enrolled under the project so
as to encourage youth volunteers to serve the community and to

promote the concept of mutual help among neighborhood.
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Profile of the Directors and Officers

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Hsu Feng, aged 67, has been a director of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) since January 1990
and is an executive Director of the Company. She was appointed
Managing Director of the Company in December 2001 and the
chairman of the executive committee of the Board of Directors
of the Company (the “Board”) in June 2005. She was also
elected as Chairman of the Board in December 2006.

Madam Hsu has over 10 years’ experience in film production,
and in property development and investment as well as retail
industry in Taiwan. She has been engaged in the property
development, and hospitality and leisure business in the
Mainland of the People’s Republic of China (“China”) over the
past two decades. She is also the Honorary Consul of the
Principality of Monaco in Shanghai, China.

Madam Hsu is the mother of Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles, who are Vice-Chairmen of the Board and executive
Directors of the Company. All of them are directors of E-Shares
Investments Limited (“E-Shares”). In addition, both Madam
Hsu and Mr Albert Tong are directors of King China Holdings
Limited (“King China”) and executive directors of a listed
company in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of
China (“Hong Kong”), Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”).
Madam Hsu is also the owner of E-Shares and King China and a
substantial shareholder of RHL. Mr Albert Tong, Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles, E-Shares, King China and RHL are shareholders of
the Company having a notifiable interest under Part XV of the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”).

As at 27th March, 2018, pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu was
interested and taken to be interested in a total of 582,105,326

issued shares of the Company.
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Mr Albert Tong, aged 35, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company since December 2001 and a member
of the executive committee and remuneration committee of the
Board since June 2005. He was also elected as Vice-Chairman of
the Board in December 2006. He has joined the Group and
taken up directorships of the subsidiaries of the Company since
March 2001. He has actively participated in the Group’s
business development, corporate management, property trading

and securities investment for many years.

Mr Albert Tong is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the
Board and Managing Director of the Company, and the younger
brother of Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, Vice-Chairman of the
Board and executive Director of the Company. They all are
directors of E-Shares. Both Mr Albert Tong and Madam Hsu are
directors of King China and executive directors of RHL. He is
also a shareholder of RHL. Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles, E-Shares, King China and RHL are shareholders of the
Company having a notifiable interest under Part XV of the SFO.

As at 27th March, 2018, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Albert Tong
was interested in 245,794,223 issued shares of the Company.

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, aged 37, has been appointed an
executive Director of the Company and a member of the
executive committee of the Board since October 2008. He was
also elected as Vice-Chairman of the Board in December 2010.
He has joined the Group since December 2000 and has
participated in property trading and business management of the
Shanghai office of the Group. Mr Tong also acts as a director of
a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He now principally
engages in property development and trading business in the

Mainland of China.

In addition, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles was a member of the
13th Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference during the period from

January 2013 to January 2018.
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Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles is a son of Madam Hsu Feng,
Chairman of the Board and Managing Director of the Company,
and the elder brother of Mr Albert Tong, Vice-Chairman of the
Board and executive Director of the Company. They all are
directors of E-Shares. He is also a shareholder of RHL. Madam
Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong, E-Shares and RHL are shareholders
of the Company having a notifiable interest under Part XV of
the SFO.

As at 27th March, 2018, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles was interested in 250,927,799 issued shares of the
Company.

Mr Yeung Kam Hoi, aged 68, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company and a member of the executive
committee of the Board since August 2010. He is the Chief
Deputy General Manager of the Group and has been appointed
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company since
August 2010.

Mr Yeung is an associate of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries, and a member of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute. He also holds a Master of
Accountancy degree of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Mr Yeung served as the company secretary of various listed
companies in Hong Kong during the period from 1988 to 2010,
and acted as group company secretary of a listed conglomerate
consisting of five listed companies during the period from 1998
to 2010. He has 30 years’ experience in an extensive range of
corporate exercises and regulatory compliance matters of public

listed companies in Hong Kong,.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, aged 53, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and the
chairman of the audit committee of the Board since September
2004. He was also appointed a member of the remuneration
committee of the Board in June 2005 and then was appointed as

the chairman of this committee in April 2011.
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Mr Cheung is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He is practising as a certified
public accountant in Hong Kong and is the sole proprietor of

Oscar S. P. Cheung & Co..

The annual director’s fee of Mr Cheung has been increased from
HK$150,000 to HK$163,200 with effect from 1st January,
2018, which was approved by the Board, under the authorization
of the shareholders at the 2017 annual general meeting of the
Company and on recommendation of the remuneration
committee of the Board with reference to his responsibilities and

prevailing market conditions.

Mr Lee Chan Fai, aged 55, has been appointed an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and a member of each
of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Board since December 2005.

He graduated from The University of Hong Kong, is a member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects and is qualified as a
Registered Architect in Hong Kong and a First Class Registered
Architect in the Mainland of China. Mr Lee has acted as a
director of Marco Asia Limited and J&P Architects Limited (%%
W F SR A PR/ ) since the 1990’s, and a director of J&P
Architects Limited (.F 7 2% 02 8% 51 36 50 A R A A]) since
January 2015. He was a director of JSP Architects Limited
during the period from 2008 to July 2012. He has extensive

experience in architectural design.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Lee has been increased from
HK$150,000 to HK$163,200 with effect from Ist January,
2018, which was approved by the Board, under the authorization
of the shareholders at the 2017 annual general meeting of the
Company and on recommendation of the remuneration
committee of the Board with reference to his responsibilities and

prevailing market conditions.
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Mr Sean S J Wang, aged 54, has been appointed an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and a member of each
of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the

Board since April 2011.

He graduated from Peking University and studied economics.
He then went to the United States of America and obtained a
bachelor of science degree from Hamline University in 1986 and
a MBA degree from University of Minnesota in 1989. Mr Wang
has in-depth and extensive experience in corporate management
and funds operation. He also has many years of experience in
financial operation and project management at various
multinational firms listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
NASDAQ and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He
was an executive director and the chief financial officer of China
Huarong Energy Company Limited, a company listed in Hong
Kong, during the period from October 2010 to October 2016,
and was an executive director and the chief executive officer of
ENN Energy Holdings Limited, a company listed in Hong
Kong, during the period from March 2017 to January 2018.
Previously, he also held the positions of president and chief
operating officer of Hurray! Holding Limited, a company listed
on NASDAQ, a non-executive director of China Advanced
Construction Materials Group, Inc., a company listed on
NASDAQ), and an executive director and the chief financial
officer of SOHO China Limited, a company listed in Hong
Kong. He was awarded “CFO of the Year in China” in 2009.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Wang has been increased from
HK$150,000 to HK$163,200 with effect from 1st January,
2018, which was approved by the Board, under the authorization
of the shareholders at the 2017 annual general meeting of the
Company and on recommendation of the remuneration
committee of the Board with reference to his responsibilities and

prevailing market conditions.
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OFFICERS

Ms Lee Yuen Han, aged 51, joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed the Company Secretary of the Company in March
1998 and has acted as the Deputy General Manager of the
Company since August 2005.

She attained a bachelor’s degree in economics and a master’s
degree in business studies, and is an associate of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong

Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr Kwok Sau King, aged 59, joined the Group in 1990. He
was appointed the Financial Controller of the Company in

September 1999.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased
to present its Report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December,
2017 and the independent Auditor’s report thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group in the course of the year
were property development and investment, hospitality and
leisure business, securities trading, PVC operations as well as
operation of and investment in media and entertainment

business.

During the year under review, the Company acted as an
investment holding company and the principal activities and
other particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are
listed under Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements on

pages 176 to 183.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the performance and position of the Group’s
business for the year ended 31st December, 2017, an indication
of the future development of the Group’s business as well as an
analysis of the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to

22. This discussion forms part of this Report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance as well as its compliance with laws and regulations,
and an account of the Group’s relationships with its employees,

customers and suppliers are set out below in this Report.

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December,
2017 and the Group’s financial position as at the end thereof are
set out on pages 72 to 185. An analysis by operating segments
and geographical location is set out in Notes 6 and 7 to the

consolidated financial statements on pages 115 to 120.

As at the date of this Report, the Board is not aware of any
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since

the end of the year under review.
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DIVIDEND

The Board has declared an interim dividend of 43 HK cents per
share for the year ended 31st December, 2017 (2016: 43 HK
cents per share) to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 8th May, 2018
(the “Record Date”). Sharcholders will be given an option to
elect to receive shares of HK$0.50 each in the capital of the
Company (the “Share(s)”) credited as fully paid in lieu of cash in
respect of all or part of the interim dividend (the “Scrip
Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is conditional upon consent of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
to grant listing of and permission to deal in the new Shares to be
allotted thereunder. For the purpose of determining the number
of new Shares to be allotted under the Scrip Dividend Scheme,
the market value of a new Share will be calculated as an amount
equal to 95% of the average of the closing prices per Share
traded on the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive trading
days up to and including the Record Date. A circular providing
full details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme, together with a form
of election, will be sent to the shareholders of the Company in
due course. Dividend warrants and/or share certificates for the
scrip dividend are expected to be despatched on Thursday, 14th
June, 2018.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed for the

following periods:

(a) For the purpose of determining the shareholders who
qualify for the interim dividend for 2017, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 4th
May, 2018 to Tuesday, 8th May, 2018, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for the interim dividend, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with Tricor Secretaries Limited,
the Company’s share registrar in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
(“China”) (“Hong Kong”), not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 3rd May, 2018 for registration; and
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(b) The annual general meeting of the Company has been
convened for Thursday, 31st May, 2018 (the “2018
AGM?”). For the purpose of determining the sharcholders
who are entitled to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 28th May, 2018 to Thursday, 31st May, 2018,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the 2018 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
25th May, 2018 for registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the Group’s five largest customers
contributed approximately 35.80% of the Group’s gross proceeds
from operations with the largest customer accounting for
approximately 10.93% of the Group’s gross proceeds from
operations while approximately 94.22% of the Group’s purchases
were attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers with the
largest supplier accounting for approximately 45.84% of the

Group’s purchases.

None of the Directors of the Company, their close associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% interest in the number of issued Shares) have any

interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group donated
approximately HK$745,000 for charitable and other causes.
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FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group added
fixed assets amounting to HK$16,734,000 (2016: HK$2,933,000)
while it disposed of and wrote off fixed assets with an aggregate
net book value of HK$740,000 (2016: HK$564,000) in addition
to a disposal of fixed assets with a net book value of HK$638,000
through disposal of its subsidiaries (2016: Nil).

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are
shown in Notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial

statements on pages 130 to 135.

A schedule of the principal properties held by the Group, either
under development or for sale or investment purposes, is set out

on pages 187 to 192.

BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

Details of borrowings of the Group as at 31st December, 2017
are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements

on page 154.

No debentures of any class were issued by the Company or any

of its subsidiaries, or were in issue, at any time during the year.

No interest expenses attributable to properties under
development were capitalized by the Group during the year
(2016: HK$326,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, the Company issued and allotted
170,525,050 new Shares at a price of HK$3.2433 per Share to
the shareholders who elected to receive Shares credited as fully
paid in lieu of cash for the interim dividend of the Company for
the year ended 31st December, 2016. All those new Shares
issued rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing issued
Shares.
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As at 31st December, 2017, 1,885,584,547 Shares were in issue.
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note

28 to the consolidated financial statements on page 151.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption made by the Company, or any of

its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than a share option scheme adopted by the Company in
2012 as disclosed in this Report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company during the year under review

or subsisted at the end of the year.

RESERVES

The retained earnings and share premium of the Company as at
31st December, 2017 amounted to HK$119,772,000 (2016:
HK$11,117,000) and HK$1,766,107,000 (2016: HK$2,035,781,000)

respectively. These reserves are available for distribution.

The Board recommends that the retained earnings of the Group
as at 31st December, 2017 amounting to HK$8,348,566,000 be
carried forward. Other movements in reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are shown in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and Note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 77 to 78 and page 175 respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and

the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for
the preceding five financial years is set out on pages 194 and

195.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this Report and
those who were in office during the year under review and up to
the date of this Report are:

Executive Directors

Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr Albert Tong (Vice-Chairman)

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (Vice-Chairman)

Mr Yeung Kam Hoi

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar

Mr Lee Chan Fai

Mr Sean S ] Wang

A profile of the Directors of the Company is shown on pages 38
to 42.

Information relating to emoluments paid to the Company’s
Directors during the year is set out in Note 12 to the

consolidated financial statements on pages 125 and 126.

All Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by
rotation at annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
Article 116 of the Articles of Association of the Company
provides that at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors of the Company for the time being or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the nearest number to
but not more than one-third shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The Directors to retire
each year shall be those who have been longest in office since
their last election and who are eligible for re-election. In this
connection, Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Lee
Chan Fai will retire by rotation at the 2018 AGM. Being

eligible, they offer themselves for re-election.
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The re-election of the retiring Directors of the Company is
subject to separate resolutions to be approved by shareholders at
the 2018 AGM and details of those Directors will be disclosed in
a circular of the Company to be despatched to the shareholders

together with the notice of the annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

The Directors of the Company who are proposed for re-election
at the 2018 AGM do not have any unexpired service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year under review,
which provides appropriate cover for the directors and officers of

the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2017, the interests and short positions of
the Directors of the Company in shares, debentures and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein (including interests and short
positions which they were taken to have under Section 344 of
the SFO) or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”),

were as follows:
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(I) The Company:

@ KA :

Shares of HK$0.50 each 5 3% T {0,509 7T Z Bt 17
Number of Shares
J& 43 ¥ H
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors EEEA i\ B 2 % JB HE 2 4 v B 2 Al 1 4
Madam Hsu Feng (4) fr Wt ) 199,715,040 (B) Nil f& 382,390,286 (C) 235,040,000 (E)
Nil (D) 252,890,022 (F)
Mr Albert Tong (4) G rEEE @A) 128,274,223 (B) Nil % Nil # (D) 941,761,125 (G)
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (4) ¥ F 7 64 (4) 124,615,799 (B) Nil 4 Nil # (D) 945,419,549 (G)
(II) The Company’s associated corporations: (1) A2 6] 2 FH Bk 3 1 -
(1) China Boom Enterprises Limited 1) BELEAMAF([EH#E])
(“China Boom”)
Shares of US$1 each 5 3 I AL 136 o0 2 Bt
Number of shares of China Boom
REBEZRHEA
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Director HEEA i\ B 2 % JB HE 4 4 vl B 4 Al 1 3
Madam Hsu Feng (H) fr Mut H) 716,800 Nil f 563,200 Nil &

Tomson Group Limited ¥ B4 [H 4 fRA 7
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(2) Tomson Entertainment Co. Limited 2) GEBLERNARAH
(“Tomson Entertainment”) (R-1:8. % 4}
Shares of NTD10 each T RmAE Y & %1002

Number of shares of Tomson Entertainment

IS T4 ]
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Director HHEEA i\ # 23 % B HE i 2w HE 42 J A B 22
Madam Hsu Feng (1) % WLt 1,350,000 Nil & 1,125,000 Nil 4

Notes: W&t -

(A) Madam Hsu Feng is the mother of Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong (A) R L By TR e A R TR SR
Chi Kar Charles. As at 31st December, 2017, they, being 2R RN _F—-tHE+_HAH=+—
considered to be persons acting in concert, were interested in an H o> AR5 GBI I & ) > 55 (Bt
aggregate of 1,070,035,348 Shares, representing 56.74% interests WA —SAT8EHMmAL) FE AR
in the number of issued Shares, pursuant to the SFO. 1,070,035,348 % I 1 (1 & 847 B 1

(B)

©

H256.74%E5) o

These Shares were held by the relevant Directors of the Company B) FEBRBHAAANGHEFHES
in their capacities as beneficial owners. WaENZ GWFE -
The 382,390,286 Shares were beneficially held by the following (C) #%%382,390,286H% Bt iy i1 T 3 A< /2 H]
shareholders of the Company: IR ERIEA
Number of Shares held
Name of companies kA i k¢ A Ity 2 B H
King China Holdings Limited i 2 LR 3 A PR A 222,829,955
E-Shares Investments Limited E-Shares Investments Limited 159,560,331
382,390,286
As Madam Hsu Feng held the entire interests of King China HREE L EHAREEEAFRAF
Holdings Limited and E-Shares Investments Limited, she was J E-Shares Investments Limited Z &= #]
deemed to be interested in these shares pursuant to the SFO. WEZS » MURIE GBI I &) > 1%

WAR B B AT %2 By 2 HE 4R
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(E)

¥

(D) The following companies, being wholly-owned subsidiaries of (D) FAARA BHHE—RXREFBELTZA
Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”, a listed company in Hong Al =) A A R A | (T ) 2 4
Kong), beneficially held an aggregate of 221,500,000 Shares: BB A ) BT A A £221,500,000

JBe ety
Number of Shares held
Name of companies 2 W) 44 1 P de A B 2 B H
Forty Enterprises Company Limited BROCEARAA 14,974,030
Shine Trip Limited Hii S A R 7 206,525,970
221,500,000
As at 31st December, 2017, Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong RoEF—-LEF A=+ —H RE
and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles were or were deemed to be GBI R GG > MLt BT
substantial shareholders of RHL pursuant to the SFO. In ] 56 A K 1 3% e A B ORI s 1T
addition, Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Albert Tong were directors of Z BB o WA - bl L R TR
RHL. SErE XY I I 2 A .
Madam Hsu Feng had entered into agreements with Mr Albert () trbd L 8RY 7 F 4 ki T 5k E
Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, to sell to each of them BA T W& om o E s A b
117,520,000 Shares, in an aggregate of 235,040,000 Shares, 117,520,000% & i (& 3£235,040,000/8
which had been pledged by Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi JBehy) o M 1 F S K T 5 B A Y
Kar Charles in favour of Madam Hsu Feng as a security for their WA T 52 5% R TR & L A B AT
performance of the duties under the aforesaid agreements. Hence, HER LB RE N BT AEEZ
as at 31st December, 2017, Madam Hsu Feng had a security Tt WL P —F—L4E+ - H
interest in these issued Shares pursuant to the SFO. =+ —H o R GESERE KRG
TR L LRAZECBIT R —H
PREEHRESL ©
On account of the agreements as mentioned in Note (E) above, (F) %ﬁﬁiﬂ&ﬁ%ﬂE))ﬁﬂZﬁi% » Mg GE
Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar KRB > B+ 5 FIE L
Charles were considered to be persons acting in concert pursuant ERGTHREEGRE —BUTEHM A
to the SFO. In this connection, in addition to those Shares - R FE—EFET_H=1+—
transferred under the said agreements, as at 31st December, 2017, H oo BRAR 45 bl 175 ok i 8 2 5% 55 Iy
Madam Hsu Feng was taken to be interested in a total of A IR A LR B A B TR G
252,890,022 Shares beneficially held by Mr Albert Tong and Mr YR TREEESR SR Z &
Tong Chi Kar Charles. 252,890,022/ Ji 3 HE % ©
On account of the agreements as mentioned in Note (E) above, (G) FLJh bl Bt sk (B) Br il 2 Wh ok > 1R 8E GEB

Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles were considered to be persons acting in concert pursuant

to the SFO.
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In this connection, as at 31st December, 2017, Mr Albert Tong
was not only interested in the 117,520,000 Shares transferred
from Madam Hsu Feng, but taken to be interested in a total of
824,241,125 Shares beneficially held by Madam Hsu Feng and
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles.

Furthermore, as at 31st December, 2017, Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles was not only interested in the 117,520,000 Shares
transferred from Madam Hsu Feng, but taken to be interested in
a total of 827,899,549 Shares beneficially held by Madam Hsu
Feng and Mr Albert Tong.

Madam Hsu Feng held, in her capacity as a beneficial owner, a
personal interest in 716,800 shares (being 56%) in the capital of
China Boom while the Company held the balance of interest of
563,200 shares (being 44%) in the capital of China Boom
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries. As at 31st December,
2017, Madam Hsu was deemed to control the exercise of more
than one-third of voting power at general meetings of the
Company, hence, she was also taken to be interested in those
shares held by the Company. In conclusion, Madam Hsu was
interested and deemed to be interested in 1,280,000 issued shares
(being 100%) of China Boom pursuant to the SFO.

Madam Hsu Feng held, in her capacity as a beneficial owner, a
personal interest in 1,350,000 shares (being 54%) in the capital of
Tomson Entertainment while the Company held an interest in
1,125,000 shares (being 45%) in the capital of Tomson
Entertainment through its wholly-owned subsidiaries. As at 31st
December, 2017, Madam Hsu was deemed to control the exercise
of more than one-third of voting power at general meetings of the
Company, hence, she was also taken to be interested in those
shares held by the Company. In conclusion, Madam Hsu was
interested and deemed to be interested in 2,475,000 issued shares

(being 99%) of Tomson Entertainment pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company

and their associates had any interests or short positions in the

shares, debentures and underlying shares of the Company or any

of its associated corporations as at 31st December, 2017, which

were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be

entered in the register referred to therein (including interests or

short positions which they were taken to have under Section 344

of the SFO) or which were required to be notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.

(H)

@
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012
Scheme”) on 1st June, 2012. Under the 2012 Scheme, there
were no options granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during
the year ended 31st December, 2017, nor was there any option

outstanding at the beginning or at the end of the year.

Major terms of the 2012 Scheme

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to provide incentives or
rewards to selected persons for their contribution to any member
of the Group or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).

The participants include, inter alia:

(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or
part time) of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, including any executive director of any of these

companies; or

(i) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive director) of any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity; or

(iii) any adviser or consultant or customer of, or any supplier of
goods or services to any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity; or

(iv) any sharcholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by

any member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

As at the date of this Report, save as otherwise approved by the
shareholders of the Company, the maximum number of Shares
available for issue under options which may be granted is
137,252,380, representing approximately 7.28% of the number

of issued Shares.
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The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to each participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant of options shall not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue at the date of grant (the “Individual Limit”).
If any further grant of options to a participant would result in
the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options granted and to be granted to such person
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such further
grant to be in excess of the Individual Limit, such further grant
must be subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting of
the Company with such participant and his or her associates

abstaining from voting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not be more than 10 years

commencing from the date of grant of the option.

Save as determined by the Board and stated in the offer of the
relevant options, there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised under the 2012

Scheme.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be made
within 28 days from the date on which such offer is made with a
non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the

Company by way of a consideration for the grant thereof.

The subscription price per Share in respect of any option that
may be granted shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be less

than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer

of the option, which must be a business day;

(ii) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the

option; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares on the date of offer.
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The 2012 Scheme shall be valid and effective until 31st May,
2022 subject to eatlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board. After the expiry of such valid period,
no further options will be offered or granted but in all other
respects the provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall remain in full

force and effect.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the 2012 Scheme, at no time during the year nor at
the end of the year ended 31st December, 2017 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the Board and Managing
Director of the Company, is a director and substantial
shareholder of RHL. Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles, being Vice-Chairmen of the Board and executive
Directors of the Company, were deemed to be substantial
shareholders of RHL pursuant to the SFO during the year under
review. In addition, Mr Albert Tong is a director of RHL.

RHL is engaged in property development and investment in
Shanghai of China, in particular, in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, through its subsidiaries and associated
company. Property development and investment, with particular
focus on Pudong New Area in Shanghai, is one of the principal
businesses of the Group. The business of RHL in the property
sector in Shanghai (the “Excluded Business”) therefore may

potentially compete with the Group’s business.
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In this connection, Madam Hsu, Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles are/were considered to have interests in a
business which may compete or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than
that business where the Directors of the Company have been
appointed or were appointed as directors to represent the
interests of the Company and/or the Group, pursuant to the
Listing Rules. Nevertheless, RHL is a listed company in Hong
Kong and both the Group’s business and the Excluded Business
are managed by their respective independent management and
administration. Besides, the Board is independent of the board
of directors and management of RHL and the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company will also be monitoring
the operations of the Group. The Group is therefore capable of
carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length

from, the Excluded Business.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
or an entity connected with him (within the meaning of Section
486 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, were entered into during
the year ended 31st December, 2017 or subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Group were
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31st December,
2017.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Company recognizes that employees are one of the Group’s
valuable assets and the Group is conscious of the importance of a
highly-effective staff management and incentive structure. The
Group provides competitive remuneration packages and makes
regular review to attract and motivate the employees. Remuneration
and benefit packages are generally structured by reference to market

terms, individual responsibilities, performance and qualifications.

The emoluments of the executive Directors of the Company are
determined by the Board on the recommendation of its remuneration
committee (the “Committee”). The fees of the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company are fixed by the Board
under the authorization of the shareholders of the Company and on
the recommendation of the Committee. In addition, the Company
has adopted the 2012 Scheme pursuant to which it may grant the
directors and employees of the Group options to subscribe for Shares

as a long-term incentive.

PENSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in a pension scheme, which was
registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all its
employees in Hong Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution
scheme effective from December 2000 and is funded by
contributions from employer and employees in accordance with
the provisions of the MPF Ordinance. If the employer makes any
voluntary contributions for the employees under the scheme,
forfeited contributions in this nature can be applied to reduce
the amount of future voluntary contributions payable by the

employer.

Furthermore, the employees of the Group in the Mainland of
China are members of respective state-managed defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes operated by the local
governments. The employers and the employees are obliged to
make contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll under

rules of the schemes.

During the year under review, the total amount contributed by
the Group to the said schemes and charged to the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss amounted to HK$7,461,000 (2016:
HK$8,168,000) and no contributions were forfeited.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationships with its suppliers and customers to achieve its
short-term and long-term goals. To maintain its competitive
status, the Group aims at providing quality products and services

to its customers.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31st December, 2017, the following shareholders (other
than the Directors of the Company) were interested, directly or
indirectly, in 5% or more of the number of issued Shares and
underlying shares of the Company and those interests were

required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under

Section 336 of the SFO:

(I) Substantial Shareholders

Name of shareholders
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AR AEEBC MK 2
4 R iy B AR
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Number of Shares held
(proportion to

the number of issued Shares)

P A ki 2 BH
i 3K 4 HE (I AT B H Z F 4 k)
King China Holdings Limited 2% 4 A7 FR A 7] (2) 222,829,955  (11.81%)
Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”) JII {04 B A7 BR 22 &) ([ 113 1) (b) 221,500,000  (11.74%)

(IT) Other Person

Name of shareholder

an HAte A+

Number of Shares held
(proportion to

the number of issued Shares)

i A ety 2 8 H
Ji& 3R 44 W (e ITRhEEHZAEDL)
E-Shares Investments Limited (a) 159,560,331 (8.46%)
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

King China Holdings Limited and E-Shares Investments Limited
were the beneficial owners of these Shares respectively. They were
wholly owned by Madam Hsu Feng in her capacity as a beneficial
owner. Pursuant to the SFO, their interests in the Shares therefore
constituted part of the total interests of Madam Hsu Feng,
Mr Albert Tong and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles in the capital of
the Company as disclosed in the above paragraph headed
“Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Securities” in this

Report.

Amongst these shares disclosed, 206,525,970 Shares were
beneficially held by Shine Trip Limited, which was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Superwell Development Limited in
which RHL held its entire equity interest. Therefore, Shine Trip
Limited, Superwell Development Limited and RHL were

interested or were taken to be interested in these Shares pursuant

to the SFO.

Details of the interest taken to be held by RHL under the SFO
are set out in Note (D) to the above paragraph headed “Directors’

Interests and Short Positions in Securities” in this Report.

Save for the above interests, the Directors of the Company are

not aware of any person (other than the Directors of the

Company) who had, directly or indirectly, interests or short

positions in the number of issued Shares and the underlying

shares of the Company and those interests or short positions

were required to be recorded in the register kept under Section
336 of the SFO as at 31st December, 2017.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as

prescribed by the Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. It
continually seeks to identify and manage environmental impacts
attributable to its operation activities to minimize the impacts if
possible. It adheres to the principle of recycling and reduction
and implements green office practices such as double-sided
printing and copying and reducing energy consumption by

switching off idle lightings and electrical appliances.

The Group also seeks to reduce its material consumption and
construction wastes in construction works. During the year
under review, the Group strived to comply with local regulations

for treatment of construction wastes.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group commits itself to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations including, inter alia, the Listing Rules, Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and other applicable local laws and
regulations in various jurisdictions in which it operates.
Furthermore, the Group, acting as a property developer, is
subject to environmental protection laws and regulations,
including air and noise pollution and discharge of construction
wastes and water in the Mainland and the Macau Special
Administrative Region of China. To the best knowledge of the
Board, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations that have significant impact on the Group during the

year under review.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2017 have been audited by the Auditor of
the Company, Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and there was
no change in the Auditor of the Company in the previous three

financial years.

They will retire at the conclusion of the 2018 AGM and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Albert Tong

Vice-Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27th March, 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
TOMSON GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tomson
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 72 to 185, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31st December, 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31st December, 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

38 7 A% S i e o

=2

B AR WA IR 2w R

(1% B % BE B 7F W I 37 19 A TR A A

>
=

AAZ BT (THAY ) EFREIIERH 722
FIssSHM G EEARAF ([HAFD)
B FCRRH 22 ) (LN A [ B 4R M 1) B 4%
SRR WM B REQER %
—tETZH =+ —HRES WK
REMEZHILFENGSRGER 4
EECE VSRR R £ F
HEMGABRERERL > U RS ME
WRME > O E R G FEORSE -

KM ZEESMBERECREE
R A2 AT R S B R T
ADEEm S E T HEMR %
—EFE+ A=+ HBEGES M BIRE
B 2wz H AL AR T B &5 5 BB R Bl R AR
FHRERE - I C M RE & R
1 4 5% R % S fge e

Annual Report 2017 4 4F 4}

64



65

Independent Auditor’s Report

383 > 4% BB o

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the assets and
involvement of management judgement in determining the fair

value.

The fair value of investment properties (which included
commercial properties, residential properties and industrial
properties in Shanghai of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”)) amounted to HK$8,061,471,000 as at 31st December,
2017, with gain on fair value changes recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss of HK$154,862,000 for
the year then ended.
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As disclosed in Notes 5 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, in estimating the fair value of these investment
properties, the Group engaged a professional independent valuer
(the “Valuer”) to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation technique and inputs to the valuation. The significant
unobservable input of the investment approach is reversionary
yield, taking into account annual market rental income and unit
market value of comparable properties. A slight increase in the
reversionary yield would result in a significant decrease in fair

value, and vice versa.
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment

properties included:

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuer;
. Obtaining an understanding of the valuation process and

significant assumptions and critical judgement areas from
the management to assess if the investment approach meet

the relevant accounting requirements and industry norms;

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the estimations used, in
particular, the underlying assumptions and methodologies,
based on our knowledge of the properties market of the

relevant locations; and

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs used by the
Valuer in the valuation model, including the reversionary
yield, market unit rent of individual unit and adjustment
factors for location and other individual factors such as
road frontage, size of property and facilities against
current market data and entity specific information on a

sample basis.

Valuation of properties under development and
properties held for sale

We identified the valuation of properties under development
(“PUD”) and properties held for sale (“PES”) as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the assets and significant
judgements involved in the estimating their net realisable value

and the future costs to complete the PUD.
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The Group had PUD and PES amounted to HK$3,554,039,000
and HK$2,278,099,000 respectively as at 31st December, 2017,
of which are situated in Shanghai and Macau.

As disclosed in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements,
the net realisable values of the PUD and the PES are determined
by reference to the estimated future selling prices. The future
selling prices are estimated by reference to the recent selling
prices of similar properties in the same project or relevant
locations. In addition, the management estimated the future
costs to complete the PUD by reference to the actual
development cost of the Group’s other completed projects,

adjusted by certain current market data.
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of PUD and PES

include:

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated future costs
to completion of the PUD, on a sample basis, by
comparing them to contracts with subcontractors, actual
development cost of similar properties of the Group and
comparing the adjustments made by the management to

current market data;

. Assessing the appropriateness of the estimated future
selling prices of the PUD and the PFES, on a sample basis,
by comparing them to recent transaction prices of similar
properties in the same project or relevant locations, based
on our knowledge of the property markets of the relevant

locations; and

. Comparing the estimated future selling price of the PFS,
on a sample basis, to the actual selling price of properties
sold subsequent to the end of the reporting period to

evaluate the reasonable of management’s estimation.
Provision for land appreciation tax
We identified the provision for land appreciation tax (“LAT”)
calculations as a key audit matter since significant judgement is

required in estimating the amount of LAT to be paid by the
Group within each of the property development projects.
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The Group is subject to LAT in the Mainland of the PRC. As
disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements,
the provision for LAT of HK$391,454,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31st
December, 2017. The Group had LAT payable amounted to
HK$4,551,373,000 as at 31st December, 2017.

LAT has been provided at ranges of progressive rates of the
appreciation value, with certain allowable deductions including
land costs, borrowing costs and the relevant property
development expenditures, which are the key inputs in the
calculation of the LAT based on management’s best estimates.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the provision for LAT included:

. Obtaining an understanding from the management of the
Group about the basis adopted in arriving at the provision
for LAT;

. Assessing the Group’s provision for LAT computation

prepared by the management of the Group with reference
to relevant rules and regulations with the assistance of our
tax specialists in the PRC; and

. Checking the financial information, including land costs,
borrowing costs and relevant development expenditures,
used in the calculation of provision for LAT to the
Group’s historical financial data.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

b
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report

383 A% B e o

s ] A A S ST S ik T 2 2K
A U 5 S R A A B K S R R 1Y
JEURR - %Rt B AT AR 2 LR
7a e Ja By o DL K%OME BT R R R Y
At > AF A M E AR -
MR IREE AT RE W M e - i - &
BRSO R A
ikl SN N % 3 S R A
AL Y K S R R JeL o v S R
RE 9% B K] S it T 25 B0 B K B ok R
7t 1 JEL B o

4% g B 28 T A B 119 IR0 S B P > LARR
AEBE R E R > EH 8L Ik

HAEMAMEENAIERERE
B o

wFAE 2 2 O OR R BOR IO AR 5 1
LA g wh Al A A B 4 B 1 & B
Al‘i ®

RSB g RN
AR A o AR R T U A R
s > il 2 A7 e B 2 TH M L
A BR 0 E R AN e SE M - AT AT RE 2
¥ BEEMNFELERIEL
HEORBEME o IR EM B AGFAEEKR
AT E M IR b B AE A B e
Hh R A T B AR S M R
A AR BE B 5 o B A B A BER A
A R AM R E B R R AR B R
S o FRAM B 25 v o B 7 A% A R
RN E R R A T
RARFIHBEILTREE R HAEM

ANREFF AR o

AT 8 A5 & B WOk B R S oy

K- HMMAE BFHE UK

AR E MBS RS P BRI S A
H

B A R SRS B
B A R R OE R AR
i DB EMBEmERERTR -
‘RMAR HEEFOI W B
BABAT o A FRE RREE

HR AL -

Annual Report 2017 4 4F 4}

70



Independent Auditor’s Report

383 > 4% BB o

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the

independent auditor's report is Sze On Tat.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27th March, 2018
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 % & —

Jh‘/—ﬁ

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Gk

tHEFTF A= —HIEE

2017 2016
“E -t ZFARHF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’000
B 5E T# T Tt
Gross proceeds from operations 4 5% i 1 AR 6&7 2,167,464 4,174,196
Revenue A 6 2,107,365 4,107,056
Cost of sales 5 6 LA (736,301) (2,206,926)
Gross profit £ 1,371,064 1,900,130
Net gain in investments held for trading (GRS gl E TRt | 10,461 8,942
Other income HoAb e A 8 162,461 78,628
Other gains and losses FoAh Ik %5 & s 18 9 30,483 (4,393)
Selling expenses B E (185,248) (352,921)
Administrative expenses 1T (144,022) (198,784)
Gain on fair value changes of investment ﬁ YA TEEE)
properties WRF 2 A 2 WA 16 154,862 554,534
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—REGEME
Z W4 24 523,713 =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B B N F) 2 R A 10 551,435 -
Finance costs & 11 (86,180) (232,540)
2,389,029 1,753,596
Share of results of associates JRE A B 7 N F 2 SE AR (888) (1,202)
Share of results of joint ventures JEAL & ,%?A%Z%% 12,364 7,257
Profit before taxation R B4 I Y68 A1 12 2,400,505 1,759,651
Taxation i I8 13 (1,055,840) (751,984)
Profit for the year 4 i ] 1,344,665 1,007,667
Profit for the year attributable to: JRE A 4F B8 3 A 4
Owners of the Company EN/NEILE RS RN 1,255,486 876,256
Non-controlling interests I $E A% A% HRE 45 89,179 131,411
1,344,665 1,007,667
Earnings per share (HK cents) R B A G Al 15
— Basic —FEA 69.44 52.87
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Tncome

Gy T B B R A 2 v WA B 2

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #(%E —F— L4+ H =+—H ILFE

2017 2016
—F—EE “F-AHF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
T#x T T
Profit for the year 4 B 358 A 1,344,665 1,007,667
Other comprehensive income (expense) il 4 1 W % (A 52)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to H 17 1] E R E
profit or loss: HmAZHH -
Exchange difference arising from translation of: o IRy e A 2 e S S H
— subsidiaries — [ B A ] 803,150 (675,048)
— joint ventures —EEhE 13,600 (66,721)
— associates k= /N 766 (369)
Gain on fair value changes of available-for-sale Al Y E R E N E
investments 5 oy B A 2 Wi R 5,113 34,517
Reclassification adjustments from foreign A e o M (R A ER T
currencies translation reserves: SR
— release upon disposal of a joint venture — R E—RXEE
1> ZE TR BR 33,528 -
— release upon liquidation of a subsidiary — G — RS
25 ) IR M R (8,618) -
— release upon disposal of subsidiaries — A BB A A
IRy it R (46,489) -
Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year A B HC At 4 T UK 2
(B 52) 801,050 (707,621)
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 BE 4 T WL 4 48 A 2,145,715 300,046
Total comprehensive income attributable to: JE A A T Wi g AR QDT
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIE ETES DN 2,025,314 224,115
Non-controlling interests IF ¥2 L st R 4 120,401 75,931
2,145,715 300,046
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

i 0 B SR Ol e

At 31st December, 2017 j* —EF—+t4HFE+_—_H=+—H

2017 2016
2L —EF A
Notes HKS$’000 HK$°000
B 54 T# T IT
Non-Current Assets I B E e
Fixed assets ] &
— Investment properties — &Y 16 8,061,471 7,339,691
— Property, plant and equipment L /EBN Y &L 17 226,184 203,893
Lease premium for land + & & 18 30,410 33,368
Film distribution rights R BEATHE 19 4,942 4,942
Goodwill i 22 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets % SIE Bl THUE 31 281,729 364,538
Interests in associates TN BG4 N T ) Z M R 23 12,608 12,723
Interest in a joint venture R—REERE R 24 188,973 175,542
Available-for-sale investments At e E R 25 189,228 184,115
Pledged bank deposits R ERAT A 2K 39 941,848 163,960
9,970,681 8,516,060
Current Assets WE & E
Lease premium for land + 1 0 B & H 18 6,134 5,566
Properties under development B h ) & 20 3,554,039 3,203,593
Deposits paid for land use rights A 2 B A RT 4 21 396,063 368,006
Properties held for sale (ER=IES 2,278,099 5,471,908
Trade and other receivables and FE U & 7 Bk~ oAt
prepayments FEWCR R LA I 27(a) 1,841,016 613,081
Investments held for trading HERE 26 - 49,638
Inventories "E 27(b) 5,047 5,135
Prepaid tax FATBLIH - 32,937
Restricted bank balance = B il 8 AT &5 % 24 - 654,519
Pledged bank deposits RT3 39 41,450 111,557
Cash and bank balances B & K ERAT 45 R 27(d) 3,692,955 2,881,962
11,814,803 13,397,902
Interest in a joint venture held for sale HE—XEEMCEMS 24 - 777,783
11,814,803 14,175,685
Current Liabilities i U RER
Trade and other payables WEAS 5 5 Bk~ HoAth
and accruals JRE A B K % T R 27(c) 817,220 1,304,631
Receipts in advance TE Ui Zx I8 220,946 1,735,196
Taxation BiIH 4,851,723 4,119,944
Borrowings R 30 451,435 182,274
Amount due to a joint venture FEAT— R G B ERIE 24 - 55,779
6,341,324 7,397,824
Net Current Assets B & e 5,473,479 6,777,861
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities HEF A DR B 15,444,160 15,293,921
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B BN DL

At 31st December, 2017 A = &F—+t4E+—"H=+—H

2017 2016
BB B
Notes HKS$’ 000 HK$’000
Bt 51 T# ¢ T IT
Capital and Reserves & A B it
Share capital %N 28 942,792 857,530
Share premium and reserves J Ay T 1 J% et A 12,281,336 10,541,522
Equity attributable to owners EN/NEIR: ESES R DN
of the Company JRE A i 2 13,224,128 11,399,052
Non-controlling interests 458 T B SRHE % 296,461 993,146
Total Equity A HE A 13,520,589 12,392,198
Non-Current Liabilities Ik o B £ 1
Borrowings R 30 345,780 1,607,876
Deferred tax liabilities 1R IE B ITH A 1 31 1,577,791 1,293,847
1,923,571 2,901,723
15,444,160 15,293,921

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27th March,

2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hsu Feng
M
Chairman

E3
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Vice-chairman
EY 3



861°T6ETT  971°€66 TS0'66€°TT  080°€60°L  L8E‘LT - 180°60€ 981°/8 $98°%y 86T°1€9 80991 97967 I8L°6€0T  0€S°LS8 WEZH—|=
HZfd\—% = 9107 9quada( 1s]¢ 1 Ddur[eq
(079°¢ce) - (079°¢ce) - - - - - - - - - (079°¢ce) - B Ly RS €107 103 pred puspiaiq
0676EC - 0§766C - - - - - - - - - €ETILT  L6I'CY 3L 3% LB LA
1 N 2 duos Jopun sareys Jo anss|
- 3 - (899°6¥) - 8996y - - - - - - = = T Y sSururea paureiar 01 uonrsmboe
& 35 S ) ) ¢ X U0 JAIISIT WOIJ PATIfsuel ]
. 1 - 9157°02) - - 91%°0¢ - - - - - = = ) aa10521 snjdims £1o3m1eas 01
T B WY sSurures paurelar woly parijsuel],
9%0°00€ 1€6CL 988744 967°9.8 = - - L16%¢ - (869'989) - = = - W 1824 21 10§ SWO0UT
(XB) BT A (asuadxa) aatsuayerdwod [e10],
£99°L00°T  T1H°1€1 967°9.8 967°9/8 - - - - - = = = = i W & by e oy 10§ 1j01
L16%¢ L16%¢ _ _ _ _ L16%¢ _ - - - = = T 7 E (%% SIUIWNISIAUT I[es-10J-d[Je[TAE
HA/ B3 & i [n Jo mowaﬁo anJeA I1eJ UO UTRD)
(69¢) - (69¢) - = - - - - (69¢) - - - - ERZ=1 B8 SIIEID0SSE —
(ree99) - (tee99) - - - - - - (res99) - - - - *IR9- sarmuas Jujof ~
(870°L9)  (087°9)  (89<'619) - - - - - - (895°619) - - - - (o7 B — SALIBIpISqNS
}JO UOIIE[SUBI) WO}
CWEUH T E S Suystre aouatapyIp a3ueydxy
THE981°T1 SITL16 LTI69TTT  806°98T°9  L8€°LT (899°6¥) $99°88¢ 699°TS $98%y 9I6LTIET 80991 9.T°96T 89T°C61°T  €EETOL WM
H—H—&NM—%" U 9107 “Arenue( 1s] 18 2duUT[Rg
dgE Uy UHL UFPE UL UFPL wgE IRt g UREE U U4 UL U8t
000$3H  000$MH  000$¥H  000$MH  000$MH  000$MH 000$3¥H  000$¥H  000.$¥H  000$NH  000$MH  000.$MH 000 $XH 000 $H
Tl TRl BEYY OMEmEY WEYNE CBuwn OBY  BEEY OB 8y VY OB BRGNS
W W B2 HEEY WAy EBHR
famba RRRER SIATISAI (0) sSurures  aA1asax (2) uonismboe (p) 219831 3AI3SAI (0) 9AI2$31  S9AIISAX (q) 2419831 (B) SAISAI wnpuwaid _SES
[e20], Surjonuos  pue paureiny UONEN[BAYY U0 JAISY snjdimns JuounsaAu]  uoisuedxa  wonepsuen  uondwapar [eradg areyg a1eyg
s -uoN Tendeo £101me1g sosudiouy  sopuanmy  earden)
4 [e10], ugratog
Y B SR (8

Auedwor) ay Jo s1oumo 03 djqeIngUNY

HHITH—=H—1#F—

&M /10T T9quL09(] ISTE Papus T8k o1 104

HEHTWE

Aymby ur sa8uey)) Jo JuowIRIg PIIEPI[OSUO))

76

Annual Report 2017 4 4F 4



68S°0TSCT 19%°96T  STIFTTCT 99S8%€8  L8ELT - 9TF'E6T  667°T6 Y0LYY €L6S6ET  809°91 97967 LOT99LT  T6LTH6 WEZH—|=
M=l d—% 3 LI0T I2quaoa( IsT¢ It due[eg
Om'LeD) - Om'Le) - - - - - - - - - Om'Le) - HWE LN -2 N0t 9107 10§ pred puaprarq
(005°92) (005°92) - - - - - = = = = = = - B s180191U1
Tl Sujonuod-uou 01 pred puapiarq
790°€SS - 790°€S¢ - - - - - - - - - 208097 T9T'S8 G L QWIS PUIPIAIP
[ &£ y My dios Japun $areys jo anss|
(€L6'eys)  (9p'82s)  (60S°61) = - - (6osst) - - - - - - - SYEPRS
44 [0 N7 B ) 5B S Jo esodsip uodn aseajay
(Ggpe) (T (L19) - - - (9¢1) - (191) - - - - - S Arerpisqns &
1237 B 4 2% — B I Jo uonepmbry uodn aseajay
SILSYI'T  10%0T1 yIECT0T  98F'CSTT  — - - €IS - SILYIL - - - - Teaf ot 10§
e W 1 T 7 <y awoout aAIsuayaIdwod [e10 ]
C99FHET 6168 98%'CSTT  98%SSTT - - - - - = = = - e 1e3f oy 10 A1j01]
(87'9%) - (c87'9%) - - - - - - (687'9%) - - - - i S
1[0 7 0 U 55 RS — Jo [esodsip uodn aseajar —
(819°8) - (819°9) - - - - - - (819°8) - - - - i Arerprsqns ¢
[ERvZ [ b T Jo uonepmbry uodn aseapar -
8rsce - 876¢E - - - - - - 8Tsee - - - - S armuaa 1utof €
ETHE Y S R— Jo [esodsip uodn aseajar
9A19891
7 e g UONIESUEN) SAIOUILIND US1210
I B J¢ woly stuaunsn(pe UONEdLISSEPIY
CIT'¢ _ ¢T1C - _ _ _ 11’ - - - - = - WX (67 SIUIUISIAUT I[S-10J-2[qB[IBAL
@%@W X m\ iy wim jo mumﬁ:ﬁu aN[eA I1EJ UO UTED)
9. - 99L 7 - - - - - 9L - - - - 17 & — SRR =
009°¢1 5 009°€T - = - - - = 009°CT = = = - E¥yBoY — aImuaA Juof & —
0$1°€08 e 8T6°1LL - = - - - - 8T6°1LL - = = = (137 3y — SALTBIPISqNS —
JO uone[suEn
CWEWRZREMEW  woy Suisie duaspip sueydxy
86I°T6ETT  9VI°C66 TS0'66ETT  080°€60°L  £8E°LT » 180°60¢ 981°/8 <987y 8STTE9 809°91 9.°967 I8L°CE0°T  0€S°LS8 WHEZH—1=
HoddN—F = 9107 12quiada( IS¢ T dUE[Rq
wgE UL MHE UL WRE WP wgE UL MR UL VRL WP Py UL
000 $MH 000 $MH 000$MH 000S$MH 000$MH 000 $)XH 000 $MH 000 $MH 000$MH 000$MH 000$H 000 $XH 000 $XH 000 $3H
DR BRMN BEYY ONZREY HENE O#Eih OHe YEEE Oyl 4E @my  CuEimd BROW Y
LIRS 2] L ERY HEXY WUAY  EBEYE
Aymba SISAINUL  SIAIISAI (§) sSuruzes aasasax (3) wopismboe (p) aA3as33  2A3asAI (0) 9A3s21  s9ATISI (q) 2a39s01 () soasasas  wmwaid  endes
oL, Surfonuo>  pue pautelay  uopen[eAdy UoAlsyy  snjdins juaunsaAu]  uoisuedxs  wopesuen uondwopar [enadg areyg areyg
-uoN Tendes A1omyerg saspdisyuy  sopuanmd  [enden
[e30L, urosoq
WY BT U Y

Auedwop) ays Jo sI9UMO 03 JqEINGLINY

HETH—= NG —%

T £107 TqU09(] ISTE PIpUD Ted4 91 10

HIEHD W

Aymbyg ur sa8uey) jo yuswaeIg pareprjosuo)

Tomson Group Limited ¥ i 4E B A FR /A 7]

77



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AR MR AR B R

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # £ —&F— L4+ " H =+—H ILFF

Notes:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

®

The special reserves of the Group arose from the difference
between the aggregate amount of the then share capital and share
premium account of Tomson Investment Limited, the former
holding company of the Group, and the nominal amount of the
Company's shares issued pursuant to a scheme of arrangement in

1989.

Capital redemption reserve arose from repurchase of shares. The

amounts represent the nominal amount of the shares repurchased.

The enterprises expansion reserve is an appropriation from
retained earnings in relation to tax concession granted by the
relevant government authorities. This reserve is distributable only
for the future development or expansion of that company where

concession is granted.

The statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”) is an appropriation from
retained earnings by subsidiaries of the Company in the Mainland
of the People’s Republic of China (“Mainland China”). In
accordance with the Company Law of the Mainland China, the
Mainland China subsidiaries of the Company are required to
allocate 10% of their profit after tax to the SSR until such reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of that subsidiary. The SSR
may be converted to increase capital subject to certain restrictions

set out in the Company Law of the Mainland China.

Reserve on acquisition arose on acquisition of additional interests
in a subsidiary, being the excess of the fair value over the carrying
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
attributable to the additional interests of the subsidiary acquired
on the date of acquisition. Such reserve had been transferred to

retained earnings in the prior year.

Of the retained earnings of HK$8,348,566,000 (2016:
HK$7,093,080,000), retained earnings of HK$19,562,000 (2016:
accumulated losses of HK$4,727,000) and accumulated losses
HK$7,199,000 (2016: HK$6,311,000) are attributable to joint

ventures and associates of the Group respectively.

Wit -

@

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

7 B2 W 2 R ok A A SR S D 2
fie 23\ B BB AT BR 4 7] 2 R B A
L By o B OBR AR R B AR o R OR
— LN U AR R — TH Tp ek w8 3 AT
o 2 T {H 2 225 -

A U [0t A U T A o
I R 14 O 5 TR L 2

Tk
N
e
TRy

1> 2 58 J G A 0 b A B BN SR A T
B 5 0 T 48 B DR B P o LA AR 2
IR R AR E R B R 2 A EE R
REFRBEIREZ -

LERAGMAERAN AN P EANRE
0B P (T B ) B S A AR
B4 T R B 4B 0 BKOIE - AR PR P B A A
Al YR 5 AR A AR B A Hb I A R 2R
43 T I Bl 4 s A B9 10% 2 3 RE B B Gk
i > B % % f i 4 #E o B s W B A A
1 5 AR 19509 o 13 58 2B frf A v
oo AR AR AR M ZE 0 IR R B A
i 28 w5 T A 2 T R A o

T B A W JB8 2~ T 2 BEL A HE 45 IR A A 2
WA Sl R T R A T R R A 2
Ji 2% F AR W H 2 R AME 2 2 AT kA
HE - AEAERRREZIREE - A5
ol 0 438 2 308 1 4F TR 2 (R B i ) o

P B8 Wi F18,348,566,000% 76 (&
— 7N 4E 1 7,093,080,000% JT) o A4
B A G A S OR B i A M A
o\ B EHE 84 A £519,562,0009 J6 (—
T — N4 - BETE1H4,727,000% 78) K
7,199,000% 7T (=& — /N 4F : 6,311,000
VESTHIE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

wallaig®

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #(%E —F— L4+ H =+—H ILFE

2017 2016
—E B “FREF
HK$’ 000 HK$°000
T# T4 T

OPERATING ACTIVITIES BB
Profit before taxation 6% 36 1 et ) 2,400,505 1,759,651
Adjustments for: KDL R
Share of results of associates JRE A Wi 8 s W) 2 SE AR 888 1,202
Share of results of joint ventures AL G BN XS (12,364) (7,257)
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary HH—ZME AR 2l (8,783) =
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE —XeEREZWE (523,713) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE ff g A Al 2 IR &5 (551,435) -
Interest expenses | B BH % 86,180 232,540
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W2k ~ B m S I B 19,769 18,579
Amortisation of lease premium for land i FH 2R 6,134 5,599
Impairment of film distribution rights ¥ AT HEBUE - 549
(Recovery) allowance for bad and doubtful SRR (W [m] ) 8 45 VR 2E

debts, net (1,979) 1,359
Net (gain) loss on disposal/write off of property, e Y - RE

plant and equipment A 2 (I A ) e 1R 9 471
Gain on fair value changes of investment B& Y 20N -8 5 B RE

properties A 22 W i (154,862) (554,534)
Unrealised loss on fair value changes of 17 6 18 & - 1 5 ) IRF

investments held for trading A 2 K 5 Bl 1R - DA,
Interest income FE WA (53,183) (31,462)
Dividends from available-for-sale investments At E R 2 BRI A (86,498) (30,695)
Operating cash flows before movements EEESEEH 2

in working capital BEB W 1,120,650 1,398,236
Decrease in properties held for sale FREY) £ 5D 800,284 1,619,502
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables JEWE 5 B 3k~ HAth E

and prepayments HR R B TR SR ()

N (80,915) 39,360

Decrease in investments held for trading FREH/E A 49,638 31,273
Decrease in inventories £ B 515 467
Increase in trade and other payables JE AT 5 5 MRk~ H Al B At

and accruals Hi S T A B 268,837 15,408
Decrease in receipts in advance A W 2 8 e (93,665) (201,005)
Addition in properties under development 2% rh g 2E 3 (106,205) (145,594)
Cash from operations REEGEEZBE 1,959,139 2,757,647
Taxes paid B A B 3K (283,633) (509,345)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES #8438 & A 2 Bl &% # 1,675,506 2,248,302
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HaBeha®
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # £ —&F— L4+ " H =+—H ILFF

2017 2016
—BLE CE AR
Notes HKS$’ 000 HK$’000
ft 3% it T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREWFHD
Placement of pledged bank deposits Bk O R SRAT 77 K (806,837) (238,974)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 2 E R SR AT A7 3K 111,557 294,778
Withdrawal (placement) of restricted PR (F) 32 PR il
bank balance SRAT &5 ik 654,519 (654,519)
Deposit from disposal of interest HE—RXEGELEZ
in a joint venture held for sale T 2t T USCHR 22 2 4 - 1,308,568
Addition in investment properties REREYE (7,343) (1,021)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment [ B4 3 ~ W5 Mk M (9,391) (1,912)
Repayment from non-controlling EEIXY T Pkig
shareholders EQE 56,894 121,318
Interest received S &IPS 52,725 31,491
Dividends from available-for-sale Al E RS 2
investments BB A 86,498 30,695
Dividend from a joint venture W —HKEEREZ
(net of withholding tax) B A (B ks
L) 12,282 12,369
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and & Y3 ~ Fg 5 M ak
equipment Z % 2K IH 749 93
Net cash inflow of disposal of subsidiaries & [ff & /A 7 2
B4 A B 10 325,939 -
Advance to an associate AT T — KB s A
Z IR (7) (5)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING BEWEEEAZ
ACTIVITIES B&wdE 477,585 902,881
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il 3% B
New borrowings raised T 1 X - 1,256,750
Repayment of borrowings & 18 & 3K 34 (1,121,791) (3,752,786)
Interest paid 24 F) S 34 (85,879) (236,807)
Cash dividend paid 24T Bk B (184,412) (94,190)
Repayment to a joint venture BT —RGEMRE 34 (55,779) (45,515)
Return of capital to non-controlling ] FF 25 i i o 9 1 B A
shareholders (12,122) -
Dividend paid to non-controlling 2 AT I 2 1 i R A S
shareholder (76,500) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING AEEWEB T Z
ACTIVITIES BewmE (1,536,483) (2,872,548)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH Bl&KkB&%HEH
EQUIVALENTS g 616,608 278,635
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—H—HZHE&ER
1ST JANUARY BReE%SEEA 2,881,962 2,780,454
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE bW 0 0 R A 2 R B
RATE CHANGES 194,385 (177,127)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ®R+Z=H=+—H=2Z
31ST DECEMBER BeEkB&%HEEA
represented by cash and bank balances BN IR 4 K SR AT 45 iR 3,692,955 2,881,962
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 3 SR 255 e 2 B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #(%E —F— L4+ H =+—H ILFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate

information of the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year were property
development and investment, hospitality and leisure
business, securities trading, PVC operations as well as
operation of and investment in media and entertainment

business.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKEFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time in the

current year:

Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual Improvements to

HKEFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Except described below, the application of the above
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
position for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities including both cash and non-cash changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in Note 34. Consistent with the
transition provision of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in Note 34, the application
of these amendments has had no material impact on the

Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 12
included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKAS 28 “Investment in Associates and
Joint Venture” included in the annual improvements are
not yet mandatorily effective and they have not been early

adopted by the Group.

HKEFRS 12 states that an entity need not provide
summarised financial information for interests in
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures that are classified
(or included in a disposal group that a classified) as held
for sale. The amendments clarify that except for
summarised financial information, all other disclosure
requirements under HKFRS 12 are applicable. The
application of these amendments has had no material

impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKERS 9

HKEFRS 15

HKEFRS 16

HKERS 17

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to

HKEFRS 2

Amendments to

HKERS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKERS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40
Amendments to

HKEFRSs

Financial Instruments!

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments'

Leases?
Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration!

Uncertainty Over Income Tax

Treatments®

Classifications and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” with HKFRS 4

“Insurance Contracts”!

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures?

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle !

Transfers of Investment
Property!

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,

2018.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after st January,
2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,

2021.

HKFRS 9 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets, financial
liabilities, general hedge accounting and impairment
requirements for financial assets.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 are subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Equity investments are measured at their fair values at
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS
9, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held-for-trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31st December, 2017, the
Directors of the Company anticipate the following
potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

3.

&

H i
i

Je 58 15 4
e 15 Y J ) )

ggﬂ

(

I

: A E - NFE—H— ARG Z

A B[] A 2

REF LA — BEHEARRG

RS AE K -

3 TR i 2 A AR B A 2 4 B2
A5

‘ MR - R KRR
G JE ) AR K -

¥

CFr 7 I 5 i o ME R 28995 A T
AR EE - B R — i
e IR SO A A B
FER ZBTRUE

3 W W 5 i 5 i HI ) 25 9 5% 6 IR 1A
A CHERZ MG ERE - HEY
P8 A A R R o B
T MR ER K RIRE L B &
TE A HBMREA NEFRE > &
5 AT AR & RRAE R A &2 2

Wﬁ?@é{:\?ﬁfﬁﬁ{mEZﬁfﬁfﬁg

— RO HAR B & U OR 1 4 8 A
At o ARG YR KA e s
RIBHAFERHE o AL > B35 G
T T B S UE ) SR 95% o AN 4R [ ]
TEAS R A8 E] 22 1% 0 2 4R AE H At &
T Wi 2 2 B £ OB I =R AT

HEH) (FESERI > A —
AR Eﬁé%‘%*ﬁﬁn&’ﬂﬁuﬂﬁt)\o

BB E 2 WAE S > B R
B RHHERD %3998 [ e TR - #fERY
KatEJEHTH O EARFEEEBEK
At S > (s B 25 ik i M8 FILD
595 Bl E i T I AE B s B A Xt
oo G B A B E TR
ot H O S B 1R M ez s
UG REERZ S8 AR DR
5B R B WG R DA AR 2 B ) o
MEZ > BHABEFEEGEEFMHT
e (s B E -

ISR S F — £ 4
= F i 4 b T 2B B
P REYNCE RS TS e LR
S S 4 2 L) S OYE B A7 LA T o8
R

Annual Report 2017 4 4F 4}

84



85

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 255 e o i
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Classification and measurement:

Listed equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at fair value as disclosed in Note 25:
these securities qualified for designation as measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
under HKFRS 9, however, the fair value gains accumulated
in the investment reserve amounting to HK$92,299,000 as
at Ist January, 2018 will no longer be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss under HKFRS 9, which is
different from the current treatment. This will affect the
amounts recognised in the Group's consolidated statement
of profit or loss but will not affect total comprehensive

income.

Equity securities classified as available-for-sale investments
carried at cost less impairment as disclosed in Note 25:
these securities qualified for designation as measured at
FVTOCI under HKFRS 9. The Group will measure these
securities at fair value at the end of subsequent reporting
periods with fair value gains or losses to be recognised as
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment reserve. The Directors of the Company have
assessed the impact on application of relevant HKFRS 9
standards and anticipated that the application may have
impact on the results and the financial position of the

Group.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as are currently

measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment:

In general, the Directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS
9 will result in earlier provision of credit losses which are
not yet incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets
measured at amortised costs and other items that subject to
the impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9
by the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3.
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL 4
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

ﬂ

TH
S

Such further impairment recognised under expected credit A — AR 8RR s B85 i
loss model would reduce the opening retained earnings at HEHI) 2958 1% > £ THIAME & s R
st January, 2018 upon the application of HKFRS 9 in X PMERZ2E— S FEGEER - F
2018. The Directors of the Company have assessed the — /\FE—H— B Z 047~ B i A
impact on application of HKFRS 9 and it will have no Do RN FEFCFHMEA RS
material impact on the consolidated financial statements. B 5 i i E RN ) R0k 2 S B > LM

AN E A MR IR E R -
HKERS 15 was issued to establish a single comprehensive (v B 5 i o Y L)) 565 15 5% © A Af
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising S il s — TE B — 4 1 A X AL B
from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede EMBREFAGLTEEZ I A
the current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS % o i CF W A 75 i 45 VB L)) 55 1598
18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the A RAR o H s IR B IR R G U
related interpretations when it becomes effective. St ERD 18R MILA ] ~ (CFH &

FHHERD 1198 [ 54 XA
R WA TEREHE 5] -

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should CF v B 75 5 B ) B8 155 2 A% 0

recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods JECRI) o i ol BT A SR ) K G K

or services to customers in an amount that reflects the o B BRI A BRI - E B fE

consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in J W A% BT T A ¥ B A B RS

exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the FrEtEESZAE - BMmE > 3%

standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue e QI 5| A T e AR U A 2 2 B

recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer o H—X: WMAHEFISIZE

#

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the e BN HWMAEHTZEAE
contract 1£

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price e =4 EEXRHE

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the o BINL: MEHGESEEEGH
performance obligations in the contract 2 B A EAT

* Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity e FHA: NEMENBLAET
satisfies a performance obligation RF il R M A

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or MR PE Gy s B 765 3 46 Y )Y 45 1598 »

as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” B A 52 G R 4 B AT IR R ER A >

of the goods or services underlying the particular BT A 4 72 B 4 35 AT AH BE 22 1 o ek R

performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far W2 (¥ fE | i3 T % 5 I - (F

more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 e S Sy 4 v HIY 551598 B R4S HI

to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive 150 2 e B 5 e A TR B R 2 o

disclosures are required by HKFRS 15. B A > (G M B TS R 45 ME Y 551598

L7 0 o o
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87

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15
in relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent consideration, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures, however, the Directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a
material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue

recognised in the respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will

supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKERS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by
a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for own
use and those classified as investment properties while other
operating lease payments are presented as operating cash
flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as financing
cash flows by the Group.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in
potential changes in classification of these assets depending
on whether the Group presents right-to-use assets
separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they

were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a

lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

A preliminary assessment indicates that the operating lease
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of
all these leases unless they qualify for low value or
short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In
addition, the application of HKFRS 16 may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
financial effect until the Directors of the Company

complete a detailed review.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of other new and revised HKFRSs and
interpretations will have no material impact on the results

and the financial position of the Group.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36

“Impairment of Assets”.

“Inventories”

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the

asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # £ —&F— L4+ " H =+—H ILFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

*  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group losses control of the subsidiary. The results of
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
from the date of the Group gains control until the date
when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

in line with those used by other members of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 255 e o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All significant inter-group transactions, balances, income

and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Profit or loss and each item of total comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity for which the agreement date
is before Ist January, 2005 represents the excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant acquiree

at the date of acquisition.

From 1st January, 2005 onward, the Group will carry

goodwill at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the

cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # £ —&F— L4+ " H =+—H ILFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill

is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating
unit, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or

loss on disposal.

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing

control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which
case it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5
“Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”. Under the equity method, investments in

associates or joint ventures are carried in the consolidated
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 255 e o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds its interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional loses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payment on behalf of that associate or

joint venture.

The associate’s and joint venture’s financial statements used
for the application of equity method of accounting are
prepared using uniform accounting policies with the Group
for transactions and events in similar circumstances. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of the associate and joint venture to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used in the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in associates or
joint ventures. When necessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # £ —&F— L4+ " H =+—H ILFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate or

joint venture.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate or a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset
within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest, and
any proceeds from the disposal is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or

joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 255 e o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset
(or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale

within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former

subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in
an associate or a joint venture, the investment or the
portion of the investment that will be disposed of is
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above
are met, and the Group discontinues the use of the equity
method in relation to the portion that is classified as held
for sale from the time when the investment (or a portion of

the investment) is classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying

amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # £ —&F— L4+ " H =+—H ILFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognised

and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument or where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR WA S e A B RE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis

for debt instruments.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are investments held for trading. The Group classified
such financial assets as held for trading investments as they
have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in

the near future.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the

financial assets.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, restricted bank balance,
cash and bank balances, amounts due from associates and a
joint venture) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less any identified impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # £ —&F— L4+ " H =+—H ILFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include that Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the borrower being probable to enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the loans and receivables are impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted

at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amounts of the loans and receivables are
reduced by the impairment loss directly with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. When trade and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the loans and receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would

have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR WA S e A B RE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, held-for-maturity

investments and loans and receivables.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment reserve, until the financial asset
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
investment reserve is reclassified to the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale equity investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment. Any
impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not reverse in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment

reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period. An impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent

periods.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions

of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting

all of its liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amounts due to joint ventures and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 255 e o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instrument is
recognised and deducted directly in share capital for par
value and in share premium for total amount paid in excess
of par value. The same amount recognised in share capital
will be transferred from retained earnings to capital
redemption reserve. No gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity

instruments.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis

for debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a

debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently

measured at the higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised over

the guarantee period.
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 255 e o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses other than goodwill and
financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals

and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the period in which they

arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits is expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in

the year in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # £ —&F— L4+ " H =+—H ILFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold land
and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes other than
construction work-in-progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Construction work-in-progress is stated at cost less any
identified impairment loss. When the construction is
completed and the asset is available for use, the related cost
is transferred to appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the

following policy.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction work-in-progress less than
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using

the straight-line method.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained

earnings.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year in which

the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 255 e o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Properties held for sale/properties under
development (current asset)

Properties held for sale/properties under development
(current asset) are stated at the lower of cost/deemed cost
and estimated net realisable value. Properties under
development which are intended for sale in the ordinary
course of business upon completion are classified as current

assets.

Properties transferred from investment properties to
properties held for sale are stated at deemed cost on date of

transfer.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they are

incurred.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discount.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria

have been met for each of the Group's activities, as

described below.

Tomson Group Limited ¥ i 4E B A FR /A 7]

4.

G 5 BOR )

HEWE BEDYE
(B & &)

HEWEBRTYE(RBEE)
PABCA B, A 1A (8 2% A it T
HFEME B2 BARE AR - R0
B TARAE H W B i SR
YIS W B B EE o

AR EY EEBEGEY Y
TR DLRAE A (AR

i B BRA

i~ RS AEEREREEH
BEEZEERA  FEARIEZ
LEE TG RA - HEE KRB
AR JRORE 34 B B B I o BIE Lk
EREBAGEARL - FrEEERR G
GRS A R A 2 & BT B
R EWA R IBAE G AR 22 B R A
HAIBR o

P A7 HLAth £ B AR B A R 2
ZAEENNEEGIRERF -

e A il 2

WA R Wi SR WA ) S (B
FHA > B B W SEBR AR B i
) B B g B AR 5 4 R 3 4 4% 2 8

o A 2 T R A A S
T e A A B T ST > LA
LA A 3 453 0 2 0 S
I -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # £ —&F— L4+ " H =+—H ILFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

When properties are developed for sale, income is
recognised only when the respective properties have been
completed and delivered to the buyers. Payments received
from purchasers prior to this stage are recorded as receipts

in advance under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods

are delivered and title has passed.

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when the

services are rendered.

Sales of investments held for trading is recognised on a

trade date basis.

Property management fee income is recognised on an
appropriate basis over the relevant period in which the

services are rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.

Revenue from media and entertainment events organised
by co-investors is recognised, when the events are

completed and the revenue is agreed with co-investors.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 255 e o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to

profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars (“HKD?”)) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and
their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (foreign
currencies translation reserves). Such exchange differences
are reclassified in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which the foreign operation is

disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # £ —&F— L4+ " H =+—H ILFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount

of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred
tax for such investment properties are measured in
accordance with the general principles set out in HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” (i.e. based on the expected manner as to

how the properties will be recovered).

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, except when they
relate to items charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income, in which case the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when
the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in share option reserve. If a director
or an employee chooses to exercise options, the related
share option reserve is transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the related share

option reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line

basis over the terms of the relevant lease.
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of

rental expense over the lease terms on a straight-line basis.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. BEGFEBUR )

111

POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building

element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “lease premium for
land” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease terms on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as

investment properties under the fair value model.
Retirement benefit cost

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are charged as expenses when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognisd at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All the
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of

the benefit in the cost of an asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 4, the Directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group's investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group's deferred
taxation on investment properties, the Directors of the
Company have determined whether the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through

sale is rebutted and the Group has recognised deferred tax
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties
(Continued)

on changes in fair value of investment properties on the
basis that the deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that
will follow from the manner in which the Group expects at
the end of the reporting period to recover the carrying

amount of the investment properties.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumption concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the date of reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the
Mainland China. However, the implementation and
settlement of the tax vary amongst different jurisdictions in
various cities in the Mainland China and the Group has
not finalised its land appreciation tax calculation and
payments with any local tax authorities in the Mainland
China. Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the land appreciation tax and
its related income tax provisions. Land appreciation tax has
been provided at ranges of progressive rates of the
appreciation value, with certain allowable deductions
including land costs, borrowing costs and the relevant
property development expenditures, which are the key
inputs in the calculation of the land appreciation tax, the
Group recognised the land appreciation tax based on
management’s best estimates. The final tax outcome could
be different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
and these differences will have impact on the income tax
provisions in the periods in which such tax is finalised with

local tax authorities.

Tomson Group Limited ¥ i 4E B A FR /A 7]

W FH) & Wt SR ARG S B (40

PR W 2 B B (A7)

7 4 ] T R i ORI el B
SR 2 77 X B BLES 7

i wt A W R R 2 B BRI

Rk 2 B % Ko B AR
AR R Z HAth EZERIE (B K
EH NEARBREEEEREEZE
(RN PN E R P N A
AT o

& i 4 06 B

A B P ZEUR AN v R A M 2 - b (R
Bl o SR > [ (AT 3t 4% 8 9 T A T
BB 5 I 1) BB B e K 45 57 07 X
A B 22 B> i A 5% T 1 R B AP B A
b AT AT b 5 B S I 1 e 4% E £
BB B RSO - B
SE - b 8 A < T S HCAH B i 4
1A IR JEUAE o RO o A SR AR
B BERE 2 A A wH AR AR 3
B> Ty UL BB 2 A T e
WIE A 2 B A R (R4S
JEAS ~ A5 B RS B R B ) 3 9% e B
32) o B R A3 4 25 8 R 3 Bt
RAEH £ R BB H R o A
9 50 5 5 2R B g B R S R 2
A FTAIR - T IS 2 S i R 2 B
7 085 T 1 e R % 5 i JH 2 3 ]
W Z BT e Bt -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Valuation of properties under development and
properties held for sale

Properties under development and properties held for sale
are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to Directors’
estimates on future selling prices based on the prevailing
market condition. The future selling prices are estimated by
reference to the recent selling prices of similar properties in
the same project or relevant locations. In addition,
management estimated the future costs to complete the
properties under development by reference to the actual
development cost of the Group’s other completed projects,
adjusted by certain current market data. The Group has
properties under development and properties held for sale
in Shanghai and Macau, which exposes the Group to
certain price risk. If the net realisable value is less than the
cost, impairment on the properties under development and
properties held for sale has to be made. Management is
optimistic about the prospect of the Group’s investment in
the property sector and it has been cautious in formulating

and reviewing regularly the Group’s business plan.
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs

to the valuation.

592 6wl M B % B eT
AW R Z 35 2R

(%)

il 5t A B H R 2 32 2R

(#)

bR EYEZAME

B v W) 2 R R ) 3 T R ROAR B
B E L RIKE R E - nf s8]
TS % ERRIFBATTH WY
HEEEZMMFHEEE - HEEE
Ty #8225 W] — TH B 5 HH B Hh B 2 8
22 B A& B A LS o i
Gh BB EARER LMD R T
TH B 2 B R A R 58 B R
Y2 KRR A > W4 T
H AT 5 B AR R o AR R
T R M P R b 3
B3 (A 4 B I BR A T E A
0 TR (= 5 A N |
YR Al E Y EER=L/E X (b
B - S S AL HIRE R HhE ¥
W 2 H SRR 4408 > 0F B R ET
FE AR ST A S 1 2 EH R o

2 VAR wH B K A AR AR

A EE R B R AP ER . A
4% 1 5 T AE 6 AT B T A MR o
A 1 e 55— % iy A o W] LR T
SIS B B 22 1 AR B = T A (E R
LA 3L M 788 A 6 78 Ak BB FilT B A (L
W N

Annual Report 2017 4 4F 4}

114



115
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)

The Group uses valuation technique that include inputs
that are not based on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of investment properties. If there are changes
in facts and circumstances which result in revision of
unobservable market data, such changes will impact the fair
value. In accordance with HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement”, additional disclosures have been made
(please see Notes 16 and 33 about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of

the fair value of various assets.

GROSS PROCEEDS FROM
OPERATIONS AND REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of revenue under the

following headings:

(i) Property investment
= I'Cpl'CSCHtS revenue from pl'OpCl'ty management

and rental income

(ii) Property development and trading
= represents gross revenue received and receivable

from sales of properties

(iii) PVC operations
= represents the gross revenue from sale of PVC

pipes and fittings
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

6. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM

OPERATIONS AND REVENUE
(Continued)

(iv) Leisure
= represents the income from golf club operations

and its related services

(v) Media and entertainment
—  represents the gross revenue received and
receivable from investment in the production of
live entertainment shows, film distribution and

related income

Gross proceeds from operations include the gross proceeds
and dividend income received and receivable from
investments held for trading under the business of securities

trading, in addition to the above aggregated revenue.

Revenue and gross proceeds from each type of business for
the year ended 31st December, 2017 consist of the

following:

6.

W am WA )

(iv) iH B E 2%
— EREE W ARG R
USRS TN

(v) WM R 4R s
— HEEREHGREE
H w7 LB A
Z B W B R i A i 2

B LA b U R A - AR It AR AR
MEFEFREEE T RAEREZ
B i A B BB M BT 45 2 Bl K
&
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AR BUETS 2 R B B8 i 4 AA
BARE NI IE

2017 2016
—E B FREF
HKS$’ 000 HK$000
T-# ¢ T4 7T
Revenue from sale of properties FEWEZ A 1,803,193 3,752,778
Revenue from sale of goods B 7 2 A 1,114 1,154
Revenue from rendering of services 15 T S BR o SRS 4R 4t
from golf club operations MR 2 e A 42,674 42,585
Revenue from property rental and Yy KE I
management fee 255,689 300,454
Revenue from media and entertainment I B T I 4 S 2 A
business 4,695 10,085
Revenue KA 2,107,365 4,107,056
Gross proceeds from sale of and dividend FrEREZHE X
income from investments held for trading B B 2 B8 g 60,099 67,140
Gross proceeds from operations R W 4k A8 R 2,167,464 4,174,196
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. ABEF

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are based ZF;%.Z R R E
on information reported to the chief operating decision T8 3 B Je E S RTAl B AT ] E 28
makers, the Executive Directors of the Company, for the ﬁﬂ{%%‘ BiAS S Rl AT E ) Tl
purposes of resources allocation and performance 2B R D o B G E (v)
assessment. In addition to those set out in Note 6(i) to (v), Ab > A G B AR 4R GE W BB 3 1 UE
the Group’s operating segments under HKFRS 8 A S5 855 48 8 40 B | 2 /8 1 73 SR
“Operating Segments” include securities trading segment AFEEGEREZERFEE I -

which is dealing in investments held for trading.

2017 —F L
Property
Property  Development PVC Mediaand  Securities
Investment ~ and Trading ~ Operations Leisure Entertainment Trading Total
HES Rk

WERE  RWE O BBRE  WNEE  BERE ERHEE it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HEKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tin  T#x Tk T#x Tk T#x  Tix

GROSS PROCEEDS FROM BESAE

OPERATIONS
- SEGMENT REVENUE - AR A 255,689 1,803,193 1,114 42,674 4,695 60,099 2,167,464
RESULTS 3 |
Segment proft loss) i ail il DRI 965407 G8) B3 (07 10061 1267615
Other unallocated income EAFHERA 1,266,113
Unallocated expenses ATHER L (58,519)
Finance costs HMEER (86,180)
2,389,029
Share of results of associates TEfh s A il 2 5 (888)
Share of results of a joint venture ~ JE— KA B ¥ £ 12,364
Profit before taxation Bt A A 2,400,505

1 17 Tomson Group Limited ¥ B 4 [ 4 FRA 7
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for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

Except for the presentation of segment revenue which is
different from the reported revenue in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the accounting policies of the
operating segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in Note 4. For details of revenue from
each type of business and reconciliation of segment revenue
to the Group’s revenue of HK$2,107,365,000 (2016:
HK$4,107,056,000), please refer to Note 6.

Segment profit (loss) represents the results by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
salaries, share of results of associates and joint ventures,
other non-recurring income and expenses and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the Executive Directors for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. D HER #)
2016 TN
Property
Property Development PVC Mediaand ~ Securities
Investment ~ and Trading ~ Operations Leisure Entertainment Trading Total
hEER I
NELE RHE  BBEE O HREE  REEK  E5RE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
it T Tt Tt T i Tt
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM &% i & 41 4
OPERATIONS
- SEGMENT REVENUE - AR A 300454 3,752,778 1,154 42,585 10,085 67,140 4,174,196
RESULTS 3 |
Segment profit (loss) AERF (ER) 762,978 1,240,707 (2690) (31,075 (3,193) 8,528 197525
Other unallocated income HRATAERA 75,594
Unallocated expenses AP hERL (64,713)
Finance costs HEER (232,540)
1,753,596
Share of results of associates i Y | (1,202)
Shate of results of joint ventures EliaGhiz s 7,257
Profit before taxation BRBL A 1,759,651

R 3 SR B A5 A 18 15 2% b i i
WA Z 250 XAFE S > & &8
Z & wHBUK BLAS 4R B [ 5E45E a2
R BUORAFE o KB EF A BFE
T o4y B d A B AR S E IR A
2,107,365,000%5 70 (& — /N 4 ¢
4,107,056,000% JC) 2 ¥t IE 5 1
R EEG o

oy J B (k5 48) 8 45 70 B 3641
A A FEA R RATBURA
P~ RGBS R 2 SRR AL G
B A SR HoAth IR AE R MU
Fe B SZ DA K R 2 o LT 1 AT
£ S gV WE S

H °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 % & —+t4E+— H =+ —H (L 4E

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented as the chief
operating decision makers review the consolidated financial
position of the Group as a whole to assess their
performance. Management focuses more on the results of

the Group.
Other Information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss:

_'/

7. BEER @)

R R DL B A SR A
B 5 IR L LA T A B E K A
MR > SOl 25 SR E KA
R o B PGE FE A 2 A

e fib % B

#HE MR G 2 ST

Property
Property  Development PVC Mediaand ~ Securities
Investment ~ and Trading  Operations Leisure  Entertainment Trading  Unallocated Total
HET L RER
LES3 k& EBRE  MWRE  BEXE ERER APAM it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T T T T
2017 ZELE
Depreciation of property, EN TN
plant and equipment 99 4137 84 15,082 - - 367 19,769
Amortisation of lease premium -+l 7% F 8
for land - - - 6,129 - - 5 6,134
Recovery for bad and doubtful ARSI
debts 1,306 - 673 - - - - 1,979
Gain on fair value changes of BN T H e
investment properties EEZ 154,862 - - - - - - 154,862
2016 Y SN2
Depreciation of propery, EN YR
plant and equipment 147 3,995 89 14,067 - - 281 18,579
Amortisation of lease premium i % F #h 84
for land - - - 5,994 - - 5 5,999
Allowance (recovery) for IR f (R
bad and doubtful debts (8) - 1,367 - - - - 1,359
Impaitment of flm distribution % Fi % 17 REW [
rights - - - - 549 = = 549
Gain on fair value changes of B4 T H e
investment properties B 554,534 - - - - - - 554,534
Unrealised loss on fair value 5% 42 & /A (BB
changes of investments held B4 Z KEHEH
for trading - - - - - 2,234 - 2,234

Tomson Group Limited ¥ i 4E B A FR /A 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about Major Customers

For the year ended 31st December, 2017, revenue from a
single customer in property development and trading
segment amounted to HK$236,923,000 which contributed
to approximately 11.24% of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31st December, 2016, no single
customer contributed to 10% or more of the Group’s total

revenue.

Geographical Information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, Macau
and Mainland China.

The Group’s revenue from external customers is based on

the location of the operations.

7. HER )

HFHEREFZEFR

BE_ZX—-LtF+A=1+—HI:
R N BRSSP R
H— % F Z A %5236,923,00045
Lo G A EEZ B AEHBY
11.24% °

wE_E—-NFETTH=1T—H1

R MEE K ERAEEZ
A B #10% ©

Hb [ 5y T B

AL B 2 SEHS LR A TR
B 1A 3 o

AL BHEHINEF WAL LS
Ho B

2017 2016

ZE—LHE E-AF

HK$’000 HKS$’000

Tt Tt

Hong Kong 75 4,695 10,085
Macau LN 338,657 704,336
Mainland China R A 1,764,013 3,392,635
2,107,365 4,107,056

The Group’s non-current assets, excluding deferred tax
assets, amounts due from associates and a joint venture,
pledged bank deposits and available-for-sale investments,
amounted to HK$8,546,585,000 (2016: HK$7,792,163,000).
By geographical location, the assets and operation of the
associates and joint ventures are substantially situated in

the Mainland China.

Analysis of Group’s revenue by each type of business is set

out in Note 6.

AEEZ FEREEE (O E T
PIEERE BEAAREKE—RE
ARG~ HEA R AT A K B aT it
HERE) & 18,546,585,000% T
(ZF—IN4 1 7,792,163,000%7T) °
i b 158 8 73 > W E BRLG E AR SE
ZEERREELT EENR P
A H o

o4 S5 T 45 S5 HERS WEA 2 0 A7 7S
56 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#or A 5 A P

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # % —F—L4F 1 =1+—H I

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Mtk A
2017 2016
R L ZFRF
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T #T T
Other income included: HAb e A EHE -
Interest income FE U A 53,183 31,462
Dividends from available-for-sale At E R E 2 BB A
investments — listed ] 12,784 5,114
Dividends from available-for-sale Al it E R E 2 BRI A
investments — unlisted —J LT 73,714 25,581
9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. H W4k K &R
2017 2016
ZE L ZF A
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T #7 T
Recovery (allowance) for bad and doubtful SRIFNR Y B] () A
debts, net 1,979 (1,359)
Net gain (loss) on disposal/write off of HE MY E - RE K
property, plant and equipment etz W ts (Es18) 54 9 (471)
Net exchange gain (loss) ME 53,0 4 (e 4H) 19 % 19,712 (2,563)
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary BH— K W8~ R 2 Uit 8,783 =
30,483 (4,393)

Tomson Group Limited ¥ i 4E B A FR /A 7]




-

10. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

In August 2017, the Group completed the disposal of its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Tianjin Tomson Development

Co., Ltd. and its subsidiary. The net assets at the date of

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # % —%F—+

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B 255 % ik

10. B B & A W

W= F—EENA > AEE TR
EHEEWB AR RELEERA
BIR 2 7] B FCHECT B 24 A o A R

FE+-A=Zt+—HILFEE

disposal were as follows: HlZEEFEWT ¢
HKS$’ 000
T T
Net consideration received in cash and B e LB E%EEER
cash equivalents ZACE A 1,056,288
Bills receivable JE W B 4 1,222,798
Total consideration received B A8 288 2,279,086
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which REVERIHZ EE A BEDIT
control was lost:
Property, plant and equipments I E BN NS ) 638
Deferred tax assets % ST B TE 3,907
Properties held for sale RrEYE 2,744,296
Trade and other receivables and prepayments JRE S5 MRk~ H Al B SR K
K TR A KOH 64,534
Cash and bank balances B T RAT &5 R 730,349
Trade and other payable and accruals JREAS B2 ) MR R~ H Al B A+ MR SR
K TE 4 2 A (858,313)
Receipts in advance TR IR (142,203)
Taxation i JE (25,095)
Net assets disposal of A E A FE 2,518,113
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Sr e BA 5 R B RE e
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

10. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 10. i & [t 8 A W) (a2)

(Continued)
HK$’ 000
T # T
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & KB A\l 2 Wi
Total consideration received B A S 4 %A 2,279,086
Net assets disposed of e EE (?ﬁ (2,518,113)
Non-controlling interests FE $E L I R £ 728,464
Released statutory surplus reserve figR I 125 0 L f AR 15,509
Released foreign currencies translation reserve ik 3% A1 T o0, R i A 46,489
Gain on disposal o B AR 551,435
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries i 8 B & o\l 2
W& WA B3
Net consideration received in cash and BN S KBS EFEEH
cash equivalents ZACE A 1,056,288
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of W HEBS KB S%EHEEEH
& B (730,349)
325,939
The bills receivable included in trade and other receivables FE S B 5 BB k- HL At R A B 2k % FE
and prepayments which was settled in February 2018. A5 ZKIE AL E‘J}ﬁllﬁmﬁe [y -
— )\ HE&E -
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. @& % H
2017 2016
—E L ZF—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T #T T W IT
Interest on borrowings il 86,180 232,866
Less: interest capitalised (Note 20) W EARLLFE (K EE20) - (326)
86,180 232,540

Borrowing cost capitalised during prior year arose from

specific borrowings.

Tomson Group Limited ¥ B 4 [ 4 FRA 7
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12. PROFIT BEFORE'TAXATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A e R B R
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

12. B B¢ B % Al

2017 2016
R L ZFRF
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T # T T Wt
Profit before taxation has been arrived W 6 A s A1) B F0 B
at after charging:
Staff costs 8 T s 80,368 88,652
Retirement benefit scheme contributions B AR AR A F 1 H A 2R 7,461 8,168
Total staff costs (Note) e T AR (ffaE) 87,829 96,820
Auditors' remuneration 1% BRI 4 2,808 2,748
Depreciation of property, plant and Y2k ~ Wk B ik e 4 85
equipment 19,769 18,579
Amortisation of lease premium for land - i A B T 4 O
(included in administrative expenses) (FEATTELE ) 6,134 5,599
Impairment of film distribution rights B BT RE T B
(included in cost of sales) (FEA S & A - 549
Minimum lease payment under REHEZ HEHE
operating leases 10,590 10,236
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses w8 2y B 2 A B LA 678,891 2,146,665
and after crediting: DI AN PAE
Gross rental income from investment ERS-C/E Vit AL K|
properties 218,413 266,486
Less: direct operating expenses from W AFENEAHSRAZ
investment properties that generated WEMEZHE
rental income during the year i (15,526) (12,176)
Net rental income from investment properties % & ) SEFH 4 U A 15 58 202,887 254,310
Dividends from investments held for HmEREZBKEBIKA
trading (included in net gain (FHAFr 8 1% & Wi 4 13 40)
in investments held for trading) - 2,892
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

12. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Continued)

Note:

The total staff costs included emoluments paid to Directors

12. BEBE il i A )

Hit

A THAREMN FAAFAERZ

of the Company as follows: [ SR
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances contribution
and other Discretionary  to pension Total
Fees benefits bonus scheme  emoluments
B Bz
B R Bk
Name of Director HHEY e KA RN fit 3% 4
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
SR SR T SR T
2017 D S 3
Executive Directors PiTESH
Madam Hsu Feng fr Mzt
(Managing Director) (EHALH) - 9,918 - - 9,918
Mr Albert Tong U RNCIY s - 3,789 - 18 3,807
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles LRt - 3,291 - 18 3,309
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi v R - 2,419 - - 2,419
Independent Non-Executive R RTE
Directors
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar IR 150 - - - 150
Mr Lee Chan Fai FRAE R 150 - - - 150
Mr Sean § ] Wang B (it 150 - - - 150
450 19,417 - 36 19,903
2016 “F-NE
Executive Directors PiTESR
Madam Hsu Feng fx WLt
(Managing Director) (EFALH) - 9,697 - = 9,697
Mr Albert Tong B f IR e - 3,685 1,000 18 4,703
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles LTREE - 3,185 - 18 3,203
Mr Yeung Kam Hoi Wi - - 2,418 1,000 - 3,418
Independent Non-Executive R KT
Directors
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar e 143 = = = 143
Mr Lee Chan Fai ERERE 143 - - - 143
Mr Sean S ] Wang EHRIEA 143 - - - 143
429 18,985 2,000 36 21,450
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12. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
(Continued)

No Directors waived any emoluments for both years.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Group. The Independent Non-executive
Directors’ emoluments shown above were their remuneration

as Directors of the Company.

Senior management only comprises the Executive Directors
listed above, so no separate disclosure for remuneration of

senior management is presented.

During the year, the five highest paid individuals of the
Group included four (2016: four) Executive Directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emolument of remaining highest paid

individual is as below.

T——— Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B 255 % ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # %2 —F — LA+ H =+—H ILF

12. b B A % A 4)

TP TR 4 JBE R ML i S A ) P
4 o

b Al EAT HE S I R 1 S A B
B LA A 9] 2 4R R B R B T S
fif o ERUE S FRMATES MR
HU S PE AR A L R S A R

AR BN B AR LS b SCHE 2 B
FrH g Bl M08 7 B B v A B
NBZHM -

HER > AR T4 R N
A (ZF—R4E - W4) BT

o WEZMEC R L3P R
oo BT R HTMN LB

2017 2016

S L

HKS$’ 000 HK$’000

T T T T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits Hr4 > G K H At 4 1,695 1,952
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3B R AE A 51 301 2L 2 18 18
1,713 1,970
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

13. TAXATION 13. BIH
2017 2016
L
HK$’ 000 HK$000
T c T 45 7T
The charge comprises: XA
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax Hh [ A Hb A SE BT A5 B 316,060 246,441
Mainland China Land Appreciation Tax R B A L b (R
(“LAT") 391,454 545,420
Macau Complementary Tax 1M BT 15 4l SRR 29,196 60,705
Dividend withholding tax J S Fn i 627 4,285
Underprovision (overprovision) A A BN 2
in prior years (M)
— Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax — A b A SE TR B 35,121 5,240
— Dividend withholding tax — B gmt (376) -
772,082 862,091
Deferred tax charge (credit) (Note 31) A% S Bl TE BA S (HE )
(B E31) 283,758 (110,107)
Total tax charges for the year AF B Bl JE BA S AR 1,055,840 751,984

The Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016:
16.5%). No provision in Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made since the assessable profit was wholly absorbed by tax

losses brought forward for both years.

The Macau Complementary Tax is levied at 12% (2016:

12%) on the taxable income for the year.

The income tax rate of the Mainland China subsidiaries for
the year ended 31st December, 2017 is 25% (2016: 25%).

127 Tomson Group Limited ¥ i 4E B A FR /A 7]

v A3 B BT A 2 B R £516.5%
(=I5 1 16.5%) o A4
95 U A5 BB o IR A AR B A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A e R B R
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

13. TAXATION (Continued) 13. ﬁlﬁ (#5)
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit AR S B AE G 1E A5 3R 2 BR B AT I
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or Fl 2 BRI -

loss as follows:

2017 2016
—tbHE FENE
HK$’ 000 HK$°000
T# T ¥ T
Profit before taxation (excluding share of s 6 R 68 K1) (A 6045 B A
results of associates and joint ventures) B m e ENE
ZHER) 2,389,029 1,753,596
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% & A% 3 AT 15 Bi B % 25%
(2016: 25%) (Note (1)) (ZF—IR4 1 25%)
R ZBLIE (1 7E(1)) 597,257 438,399
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised A HE TR B VE 1R 2
B 2 3,208 20,029
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 755 5F JE SRR i A IR R AT A
in determining taxable profit BB S 2 BB e 2 39,355 69,767
Tax effect of income that is not assessable 7o JE SR s A IRE O ZEAE
in determining taxable profit AL Z Bl 5; = (35,773) (12,877)
Recognition of tax losses not previously ife R A8 1 ) R R 2
recognised (Note (2)) BUIEE R (7 2) - (62,956)
Effect of tax rate in difference jurisdiction NGRS EZ*}EE% E 61,840 (65,764)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B DA R AR 2
recognised i TH 5 48 (18,297) (62)
Underprovision of income taxes AR A B TS BB S 2
in prior years 34,745 5,240
Effect on Mainland China LAT F R AT b A b 38 (B
B 372,878 355,923
Dividend withholding tax J& 2 0 4B 627 4,285
Tax expense for the year A FE R TE BE 32 1,055,840 751,984
Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 31. R Bl TH 7 SE A O B3 -
Notes: Mt
(1) The domestic income tax rate is the income tax rate of the (1) A HU T AS B R Ay AN 4R ] T RS
jurisdiction where the major operations of the Group are Jt B 2 ) RE I 2 T AR B o
based.
(2)  For the year ended 31st December, 2016, deferred tax asset 2 REBEE_EX-—AFET_H=Z+—
of HK$62,956,000 was recognised in respect of tax losses of H k4B > — F M8 2 53R 1E
a subsidiary not previously recognised in view that such tax oA Tl 58 2 Tl VL e 0 e SR % AR AT
losses were expected to be utilised upon disposal of a joint i JE & 77 62,956,000 7 > R A TH
venture (see Note 24 for details). AR EEERRBE—RE
A E R B R (FEE M g

24) °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

14. DIVIDEND

15

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the Directors
have declared payment of an interim dividend of 43 HK
cents per share (2016: 43 HK cents per share) amounting to
approximately HK$810,801,000 (2016: HK$737,476,000)
for the year ended 31st December, 2017.

Of the dividend paid during 2017, approximately
HK$553,064,000 (2016: HK$239,430,000) were settled in
fully paid shares under the Company’s scrip dividend
scheme approved by the Board on 29th March, 2017 in
respect of the interim dividend for the year ended 31st
December, 2016.

14.

Jik 2.

RHEMARE > EHEREE -F
—tE+ A=t —HIEFEEZF
B 433 Il (& — R4
Be433 A1) > & 4 4 £810,801,00035

TG (. F 84 1 737,476,000 70) ©

WEEHERRR - F—L44E=H
e I M= e e o e |
=t —HIEFEZ RS2
D ERH#E > RAFRIR -F—L
FEAT S £9553,064,000 70 (—
E— N 1 239,430,000% J6) LA AR
J B3 7 ST e

EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. 45 i 7
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable A FRE LR R N AL A I B A 2
to the owners of the Company is based on the following FI T MR 45 DA E R 5
data:
2017 2016
“F b —“FRF
HK$’ 000 HK$°000
T # 0 T # T
Earnings B
Profit for the year attributable to owners of 4% A fl DA #1545 B S A<
the Company for the purposes of basic B 2 A A
earnings per share e N\ A i ) 1,255,486 876,256
Number of shares Jit o ¥ H
Weighted average number of ordinary PR RERRF 2
shares for the purpose of basic 48 I IR ST 15 B
earnings per share 1,808,030,689 1,657,387,632

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there was no

potential ordinary share in issue during both years.

Tomson Group Limited ¥ i 4E B A FR /A 7]
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. I EWE
Fair value 2017 2016
hierarchy —E g FAF
AR (R HKS$’000 HK$°000
T # T Tt
AT FAIR VALUE ARSI
At 1st January w—H—H 7,339,691 7,258,654
Addition N B 7,343 1,021
Gain on fair value changes N - (B 55 Bl R 2 A
Z W A 154,862 554,534
Exchange adjustments [ b, 77 & 559,575 (474,518)
At 31st December wt+_—_H=+—H Level 3
5= 8,061,471 7,339,691

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the

year.

The Group’s investment properties are held outside Hong

Kong and are held under operating leases.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31st
December, 2017 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that date by a professional
independent valuer not connected with the Group. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to market yield
expected by investors for similar type of properties and the
net income derived from existing tenancies with due
allowance for reversionary income potential of the
properties on a recurring basis, and market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties. As a result of the
valuation, an unrealised gain on property valuation of
approximately HK$154,862,000 (2016: HK$554,534,000)
was credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31st December, 2017.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest

and best use of the properties is their current use.

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and

accounted for as investment properties.

NI 3 L NG N A S N
i

Z UNE S -87/E BN RS
fo WIEREHERA -

—E—tEF+HA=Z+—H &K
LEZWEWENTET R EALE
V] O 4 L ) 78 7. B 3 A L S
H AT 1 Al (B 2 S v AR  fh{H Y
ZEREH T EBBEYEZ T
Wi is R R A E IR BB A A
ORI NS A W& 7/E N AN R S
N RFURYEN TG EEEEL -
R E Z &R WEME K58
Bk 25 £9154,862,000% o6 (— &
— 7N AF 1 554,534,000% 0C) E FFA
BE_Z—LHFET_H=+—HI
EEZHEAHEMEN -

st 2 A FER - W B
Ko g £ 2 AT A

AEMLEMERA > DURRHE
B AR ARG (E R W) S 2R )Y
N EBERFE S 308 IAE
RBUEY 3 -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

16. B & Y 3¢ ()

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of the major investment properties are determined
(in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the

degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements

TRERARRELFEFE W
A Bk 2 AT BLEE R ] o E
BB 2 AT E BRI BT 6
{1 il B 35 9l B iy A Bodg) KA F(E
wt P o B9 A S AR (G — )
B =) KER -

is observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group

in the consolidated

Relationship of

unobservable inputs

statement of Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant for fair value and
financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) sensitivity
T & & B 5 IR DL Y 05 4% 16 & HEREABHE e v B 5% i A\ R L
AEEFRHEEME  APEEH  FEEABRE i\ Bk 2P 4 % R K 2 I 1R
Commercial properties Level 3 Investment approach Reversionary yield, taking  The slight increase
— not developed The key inputs are: into account annual unit  in the reversionary
by the Group 1. Reversionary yield; market rental income yield would result
2. Market unit rent of and unit market value of  in a significant
individual unit; and the comparable properties  decrease in fair value,
3. Adjustment factors of 2.75% (2016: 3.0%) and vice versa
for location and
other individual
factors such as road
frontage, size of
property and facilities
ik 7ES H=M BEHX Bt ARG HGEERS ER R B LA E
— 3 phy A A FEMABES WA RATE 3R BAPERE T8 K

Tomson Group Limited ¥ i 4E B A FR /A 7]
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. BB EW 3 )

Investment properties

held by the Group Relationship of
in the consolidated unobservable inputs
statement of Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant for fair value and
financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) sensitivity
% &5 65 B OIR Dt 5 1 B 1l K BRI B e B A\ R
AEEFRRENE  APEFER EEREGAER LN 8 2P % R 2 B 17
Commercial properties Level 3 Investment approach Reversionary yield, taking  The slight increase
— developed The key inputs are: into account annual unit  in the reversionary
by the Group 1. Reversionary yield; market rental income yield would result
2. Market unit rent of and unit market value of  in a significant
individual unit; and the comparable properties  decrease in fair value,
3. Adjustment factors of 6.75% to 8.50% (2016:  and vice versa
for location and 7.0% to 8.75%)

other individual
factors such as road
frontage, size of
property and facilities

Hiik/ES H=H BEHA B NBATIGEEEES BRI RBM LT
—HAEEER EXX VN ¢ Y WA RPIEERYER  BATERBETE &
1R a % HAME BRERERE 2%
2. 5l B iz Y F56.75%%8.50% (—%F
mimEAHS s K — N 1 7.0%%8.75%)
3, T AE L A 9 0 IR &
R AR R A &
(B 5 26
I EINUYS
A% AR
Residential properties Level 3 Investment approach Reversionary yield, taking  The slight increase
The key inputs are: into account annual unit  in the reversionary
1. Reversionary yield; market rental income yield would result
2. Market unit rent of and unit market value of in a significant
individual unit; and the comparable properties  decrease in fair value,
3. Adjustment factors of 0.75% (2016: 1.0%) and vice versa

for location and
other individual
factors such as road
frontage, size of
property and facilities

FEYE E=H BEHA A ANBATGEERS BRI EREM LT §E
T AR WA RN BATEKETE K
IR BWamE GRkER 2R
2. {8 Bl B AL Y 550.75% (% — N4
TGRS & 1.0%)
3, B e Hh 1 R R R 2
T A A R R &
(i f7 4 %
L EYNUNYS
AR It )
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # % — & L4

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group
in the consolidated

A=Z+—HIE4E

Vv

16. &M% )

Relationship of
unobservable inputs

statement of Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant for fair value and
financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) sensitivity
TR S 5 e 5 18 4 5 & BRI BE B i\ R
AEMFFEENE  APHER  ERBABR i \ B 9% WA R B8R 2 B R
Industrial properties Level 3 Investment approach Reversionary yield, taking  The slight increase
The key inputs are: into account annual unit ~  in the reversionary
1. Reversionary yield; market rental income yield would result
2. Market unit rent of and unit market value of  in a significant
individual unit; and the comparable properties  decrease in fair value,
3. Adjustment factors of 7.25% (2016: 7.5%) and vice versa
for location and
other individual
factors such as road
frontage, size of
property and facilities
TEM*E FH=H BET A REARMSEERS G RN LT T
B3N ¢ K WA R BYISE  BAFERE T B K
1. fR B 2 BOHE ERlEE 2R
2. {8531 B2 Fi7.25% (ZF =A% :

Tomson Group Limited ¥ i 4E B A FR /A 7]
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR A e R B R
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

17. W3 ~ W5 M wx i

EQUIPMENT
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Construction  equipment
land and Plant and work-in  and motor
buildings  equipment progress vehicles Total
R %E
Mg+ B3} ffi
kEE  HREREH  ARIRE E L] A
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
T#x T#x T T Ti#x
At cost A
At st January, 2016 RE-F—RE—-A—H 453,016 27,033 8,889 86,674 575,612
Additions NE - 17 307 1,588 1,912
Written off s - - (544) (499) (1,039)
Disposals & - - - (563) (563)
Transferred LEE 3,543 = (3,543) - -
Exchange adjustments B .37 (29,560) (1,768) (581) (4,728) (36,637)
At 31st December, 2016 RZFE—7
+ZH=1—H 426,999 25,282 4,528 82,476 539,285
Additions NE - 130 - 9,261 9,391
Written off ik - - - (657) (657)
Disposals & - - = (1,436) (1,436)
Disposal of subsidiaries B /4 ) - - - (2,360) (2,360)
Transferred from properties held for sale HREAEY X 18,718 = = = 18,718
Exchange adjustments B i3 % 32,490 1,928 345 5,084 39,847
At 315t December, 2017 RoE—+H 4
+ZH=+—H 478,207 27,340 4,873 92,368 602,788
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ?i Ajr fﬁ B R
At Ist January, 2016 N FE—AE—A—H 255,206 21,450 - 62,489 339,145
Provided for the year B A 13,647 582 - 4,350 18,579
Eliminated on written off $ 84 2 - - - (486) (486)
Eliminated on disposals B - - - (552) (552)
Exchange adjustments 1 b 7 B (16,668) (1,402) = (3,224) (21,294)
At 31st December, 2016 RZE—NE
T-H=1+—H 252,185 20,630 - 62,577 335,392
Provided for the year AE R A 14,988 632 = 4,149 19,769
Eliminated on written off B B - = = (656) (656)
Eliminated on disposals AR = - - (697) (697)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries Hj I8 s 7 Rt 8 - - - (1,722) (1,722)
Exchange adjustments EEE T 19,325 1,573 - 3,620 24518
At 31st December, 2017 REFE—+H 4
TZA=1T—H 286,498 22,835 - 67,271 376,604
Carrying values M 1 £
At 31st December, 2017 Sl
+ZA=+—H 191,709 4,505 4,873 25,097 226,184
At 31st December, 2016 RZE—NE
+ZA=+—H 174,814 4,652 4,528 19,899 203,893
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR WS A B R —
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # %2 —F —EFE+ - H =1+ —H ILF

5

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Group’s leasehold land is situated outside Hong Kong.

Depreciation of the above property, plant and equipment
except for construction work-in-progress, is provided to
their estimated residual value over their estimated useful
lives by equal annual instalments at the followings rates per

annum:

Leasehold land and 2% to 4% or over the terms
buildings of the relevant lease

9% to 13%
18% to 40%

Plant and equipment
Furniture, fixtures and
equipment and motor

vehicles

18. LEASE PREMIUM FOR LAND

The Group’s lease premium for land comprises:

i

yr

17. V5% ~ W B s i an)

7% 42 ) 2 L 4 A T U B AL o

BRre g LA LLAN > bt & Ty 4 H
il 5 w] 0 A AR 3 DA A A 55 Y B
B HAG T E 7 WIFHR T >
YR

FE L EETFE 2% E4%50H B
& 2 4 1
e B w A 9% % 13%
RAE - S B B 18% E40%
A S FL

18. LifiE & H

AR 2 AR A

2017 2016
bl EAR
HKS$’000 HK$000
Tt T T
Leasehold land in Hong Kong EFBUHARA 2 b 146 151

Leaschold land outside Hong Kong BFWEIN AL 7 H
Z b 36,398 38,783
36,544 38,934

Analysed for reporting purposes as: RERE BB AR

Current assets W) E 6,134 5,566
Non-current assets FE B & 30,410 33,368
36,544 38,934
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
- B 0 W B MR
For the year ended 31st De:c'e‘mbeg,_ 2017 HE_F—tLFE T H=1T—HILFE

-
-

19. FILM DISTRIBUTION RIGHTS 19. 32 1T hE

HKS$’ 000
Tt
Cost B AR
At 1st January, 2016 and WZE—NE—H—H>
31st December, 2016, and 2017 TR -NERE LA
+ZA=+—H 26,715
Amortisation and impairment 1l 15 B ik AH
At 1st January, 2016 W ZFE—NE—H—H 21,224
Impairment il (E 549
At 31st December, 2016 W o_EFE—NEF+_H=+—H 21,773
Impairment W AE —
At 31st December, 2017 W_EF—tE+_"_H=+—H 21,773
Carrying value R i AL
At 31st December, 2017 w2t +-A=+—H 4,942
At 31st December, 2016 W_E—NEF+_H=+—H 4,942
Film distribution rights are amortised over their economic R R EEATRE T N L A R 4 4 A
beneficial period. & o
Based on the projected revenue from the film distribution R BT HE 2 FE L A > JE
rights, impairment loss amounted to HK$549,000 was B518549,0008 L E R —F — /NE R
recognised during the year of 2016. TR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements _ - -
6 BB o Bt ot
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

20. PROPERTIES UNDER 20. R E

DEVELOPMENT
2017 2016
“E L F AR
HK$’000 HK$°000
T # o T # T
At 1st January, at cost W—H—H - ZEA 3,203,593 3,136,392
Additions ~E 106,205 145,594
Interest capitalised EAAL A B - 326
Transferred from deposit paid for bl R
land use right e AT & - 933,001
Transferred to properties held-for-sale R B Y - (849,650)
Exchange adjustments [ 5o, 3 & 244,241 (162,070)
At 31st December, at cost mt+_HA=+—H>
& A 3,554,039 3,203,593
Properties under development under current assets of MBEENNERITDED
approximately HK$3,554,039,000 (2016: HK$3,203,593,000) 3,554,039,000% 7T (& — A 4F
are not expected to be completed within twelve months 3,203,593,000% JC) TH 5F A & A )
from the end of reporting period. AR FE AR H R
21. DEPOSITS PAID FOR LAND USE 21, FHufE BB > B ET 4
RIGHTS
At 31st December, 2017, deposits of HK$396,063,000 W_F—tFE+_H=+T—H, B
(2016: HK$368,006,000) were paid for the land use rights LA R H B A M YA T YR R T I —
of a site located in Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the e M B 2 (R RE S AT T
Mainland China with a site area of approximately 52,500 396,063,000% J6 (= & — /N 4
square meters (2016: approximately 52,500 square meters) 368,006,0005 7C) © % R t #b 2~ b
and the delivery of vacant possession to the Group is under A& T B £952,500°F 07 K (ZF — N
negotiation. 4 4)52,500°F 7 oK) o BLIERIREH

T AR BEATRER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

22. GOODWILL 22. T
HKS$’ 000
T # 0
Cost and carrying value )ﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
At 1st January, 2016, 31st December, 2016 W E—RNFE—H—H -
and 31st December, 2017 #Tﬁ/\fﬁ‘i“ A=+—HkK
—F—tF+ZA=1+—H 33,288

Goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating unit of a
wholly owned subsidiary which is engaged in property

development and trading activities.

During the year ended 31st December, 2017 and 2016, the
management of the Group determined that there was no
impairment of the cash-generating unit containing

goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit was
measured based on fair value less costs to sell calculation by
reference to observable market price using market
comparable approach for similar properties, adjusted for
location and other individual factors such as road frontage
and size. It was determined by management’s past
experience, based on the estimated gross profit from selling
of properties, taking into the consideration prevailing

market price.

B L 2 — R B A B
BELRN > ZAFEFEYEER

B2 X —LFELF—ARNF+
A=1t—HILHE > AEREEE
R N7 R B 4 A B A R -

bR YAk R VAN I W o -
T AR 45 w5 T 45 1 R A 0L 2 DA
T8 WEBIEES % > BT e b L H
At B R 2 (A i B B H K N)
VB 3R A% DS 1 (8 W 8 B AR 5T B

nf% o L bR 4 IR 1 R 1 A8 B R
MR IR W 28 B T S E A A
FT R R T AE o

iﬂﬁﬁ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SR B R B e
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 % & —+t4E+— H =+ —H (L 4E

_'/

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. AWE B N w2 W

2017 2016
ZE—tHE F-AE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T #T Tt
Cost of unlisted investments in associates Ik LTS AT 2
& A 7,071 7,071
Share of post-acquisition losses and JRE A\ i i 4% s 18 I
other comprehensive expense, HC At 22 T B S
net of dividend received EEIICE gl (5,241) (5,119)
1,830 1,952
Amounts due from associates W 4% N )RR 10,778 10,771
12,608 12,723
The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest = /NIEINE R E iGN N SN E
free and have no fixed repayment terms. [E] 5 22 K o
In the opinion of the Directors, the amounts due from RS WS AT KK H R )
associates will not be repayable within twelve months from HMR T MM A NER - B 3%
the end of the reporting period and accordingly, the HIACHIME I B & -
amounts have been classified as non-current assets.
Details of principal associates at 31st December, 2017 are FTEBEATR _FT—tLE+_H
included in Note 43. = H Z RGO B 43 e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 23. NGB vl Z BE 45 o)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s H B A 8O 8 R A B K 2 B
associates that are not individually material is set out AT BB ER MRS I T
below:
The associates are accounted for using the equity method IR G5 A BA S R 3R i 4 N A DA RE £
in these consolidated financial statements. EANRE o
2017 2016
—E2—LHE —ZF A
HKS$’ 000 HK$’000
T T THIT
Total assets MK R 45,670 45,037
Total liabilities BAE (46,841) (45,282)
Net liabilities A& (1,171) (245)
Group’s share of associates’ net assets 7S A5 ] FE A W N )
ZHEE 1,830 1,952
Revenue A 11,527 10,499
Loss for the year A B 1E 3,185 4,128
Other comprehensive income (expense) A 2 Ta U % (BE S2) 2,259 (1,405)
Group’s share of associates’ loss for the year A< 4 [H] 4F i JE {5 Bt 25\ ]
Z 1 (888) (1,202)
Group’s share of associates’ other 7 BE [H] 4F A B N )
comprehensive income (expense) 2 HoAh 2 T ik g (B S2)
for the year 766 (369)
Group’s share of associates’ total A 45 [ 4 BE AL B 7 )
comprehensive expense for the year 2 A TH B S AR (122) (1,571)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B 05 i B R g
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 Eﬁ%ig*‘bfﬁ‘l‘:ﬁ =1—HIEE

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

>
’ 7

24. B EREZ MR

2017 2016
R L ZZFRF
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T # T T Wt
Cost of unlisted investments RIELTEENEZ
in joint ventures BE A 130,185 965,954
Share of post-acquisition profits (losses), FEA Ik B2 % A (5 48) -
net of dividend received R E i ik B 19,562 (4,727)
Exchange difference arising from MASGEMNEREL
translation of joint ventures HEE 5, 2% 3 38,713 (8,415)
188,460 952,812
Amount due from a joint venture —FEERERK 513 513
188,973 953,325
Classified under: Va: =
— Non-currents assets — E B & =
— interest in a joint venture I N S < o
P 188,973 175,542
— Current assets — B G E
— interest in a joint venture held for sale —-HFE—RFELE
Z WA - 777,783
188,973 953,325
Amount due to a joint venture AT — R G E MDA - 55,779
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # £ —&F— L4+ " H =+—H ILFF

24, INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

In 2010, Tianjin Tomson Development Co., Limited, an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a joint venture agreement with an unrelated
Mainland China partner to establish Tianjin Jinwan
Property Co., Limited (“Jinwan Property”) in the Mainland
China, holding 51% interest of the registered capital as at
31st December, 2016. However, Jinwan Property was
jointly controlled by the Group and the Mainland China
partner by virtue of contractual arrangements whereby the
shareholders had rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement and the Group and the Mainland China
partner contractually agreed that decisions about major
activities required the consent of both parties. Strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the activity of
the joint venture required the approval of at least
two-thirds of voting right at board meetings of Jinwan
Property. Therefore, Jinwan Property was classified as a
joint venture of the Group as at 31st December, 2016.
Jinwan Property was a property developer and was the

Group’s strategic investment in Tianjin.

In October 2016, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement to dispose of its whole investment in Jinwan
Property at a consideration of RMB1,173 million. The
consideration had been received and an amount of
HK$654,519,000 was placed in restricted bank account.
The transaction was completed in January 2017 and the
restriction was released on completion date. A gain of
HK$523,713,000 from the disposal was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31st December, 2017.

Investment in Jinwan Property was reclassified under
current assets as interest in a joint venture held for sale as

at 31st December, 2016.

Besides, the amount due from a joint venture is unsecured,

interest free and has no fixed repayment terms.

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the
amount due from a joint venture will not be repayable
within twelve months of the end of the reporting period
and accordingly, the amount has been classified as

non-current assets.

24. REEREZHELE )

- FHES KRRl ZMEBEEE
W%/\jiﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁjéﬁi
I B B A B B AR S —
%%Tﬁ%’ﬁ*ﬁqi&ﬁijiﬁﬁ—
BEEARAR (THREEE])

E:$#ﬁ$+:ﬁz+éahﬁ
FEMEA PR A 1% & o AT >
B 3 P A A T %o B N b
G E MG A PRI g 8
W BEREEEELHENEEF
{8 > T A S [ R b B A S B R
ELHT 49 1h 2 A Bi B K 06 B) 2 PSR 2]
EETRE AR ESEZ TG
RE LEE PR R EAREE X
HHERGRPEDE = 2 _HE
FEHUUE - RIUL > R = F— RN —
A=+—HEREBEXHETEELE

M EEMCE BHEBEERER
JE T S A 5 (] R T A RS 4%
% .

=

WZE—INET A REEEFT LR
PER R > DA N e
E2HHEE REHARK
1,173,000,0007C ° ft & &8 & it L -
1M654,519,000%5 7G ) &% 1 174 32 B il
SRITIRE -G F—LF—
H 5E R > T % R 25 52 B H 195
file B o B R £5523,713,0008 7T &
WERE_Z—LtHFET+_HA=1T—H
1E4F B 1 45 A 1H fn R AR

W oFE—NEF+_A=+—H > ®
HEE R ES AR EETE
TREE—REELEES -

Ak s — %J\TJ\’EIT&
> ﬁau l = o

RAFERERE  —REERER
FOEAS & A e AR+ 8 H a4
B> It ZaEE B A kR
BEE o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF
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24, INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

The amount due to a joint venture was unsecured and bore

interest at 6.15% per annum which was repaid in 2017.

Details of a joint venture at 31st December, 2017 are
included in Note 43.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the joint
venture’s financial statements prepared in accordance with

HKEFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method

in these consolidated financial statements.

Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson Hotel Co., Ltd

24. R E A E Z HE AR ()

JEAS — K & B A R S AR
AR K 1sEF B EE R - F
— LA

St S ey = E SO
R B H AR M 43 -

A B AR 4R B 5 A S 00 RS ORI
LRSI o LUT BB ERAE Y
155 & b SE MR IR CFr ¥ T 5 ik ot Ve
HI) i S5 1 o 355 S 3R B 7 4B

A KR T B T R M 5 A S DU AR
HEANR

b R B R K AR 4 ]

(“Jinjiang Tomson Hotel”) (MBI EW)E])
2017 2016
—E2—LHE —ZZF-AHF
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T # T AR P
Current assets W) & E 333,023 294,739
Non-current assets JE B & = 94,268 101,532
Current liabilities i E) A fE 50,371 46,214
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24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the

following:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A 5 i B R

For the year ended 31st ISe:c'e‘mbcg,_ 2017 HE_F—tLFE T H=1T—HILFE
24. REEREZHELE )

Al E R A A T S5

2017 2016

bl BN

HK$’ 000 HK$°000

T # 0 T # 7T

Cash and cash equivalents Bla KB &S MEEE 266,102 208,999
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade MBI AE (AR
and other payable and accruals) JEAT B 5 Bk~ HoAth

R A e S T4 2 ) 3,698 3,048

Revenue A 198,101 203,441

Profit for the year A 3 | 24,728 26,674

Other comprehensive income 4 E HC At 2 T i i (B S2)
(expense) for the year 27,200 (24,195)
Total comprehensive income for the year A JBE 4 THI U i AR 51,928 2,479
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For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

Vv

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24 MEEREZ MR )

(Continued)
The above profit for the year includes the following: gl A R g A LG T A & T
2017 2016
bl CEAR
HK$’ 000 HKS$°000
T# ¢ T #5 7T
Depreciation & 15,724 18,658
Interest income FLE U A 11,348 13,096
Interest expense FE BH 32 - -
Income tax expense JIT 45 i B 3¢ 8,342 9,007
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial | %l B S R AR L B A R VL 3y FL VA
information to the carrying amount of the interest in JE 2 ME 25 /Y BE T (E B A 45 A B S
Jinjiang Tomson Hotel recognised in the consolidated H N TR 2 HEE -

financial statements:

2017 2016

L

HKS$’000 HK$’000

T # T T

Net assets T & 376,920 350,057
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7 4 [H 2 #E A7 HEHE 25 Lb 6] 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest 7 4 [ 15 2 B T E 188,460 175,029
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26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments as at 31st December, 2017

comprise:

25. W] ik B 1 E

Ro-ZF—tFE+-HA=+t—HZHA
fih B E AT

2017 2016
S L
HKS$’ 000 HK$’000
Tt T

Listed investments: EiE
— equity securities listed in Hong Kong B Sl N 140,622 135,509
Unlisted equity investments FEHRARE 48,091 48,091
Club debenture & flr & 25 515 515
189,228 184,115

As at the end of the reporting period, all available-for-sale
investments were stated at fair value, except for those
unlisted equity investments and club debenture, the fair
value of which cannot be measured reliably. Fair value of
listed equity investments have been determined by

reference to quoted market prices.

The unlisted equity investments represent investments in
private entities incorporated in the Mainland China. They
are measured at cost less impairment at the end of the
reporting period, and because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant the Directors of the
Company are of the opinion that their values cannot be
measured reliably. No impairment loss was recognised in
both years based on the net asset value of the investee

company.

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR
TRADING

Investments held for trading represented equity securities

listed in Hong Kong.

A HIR o BT A AL A R D
A SIIR - (B R BE AT 58 st
IR B A B Sw B R R
b o W% ETT A BB 2 AT ETY
275 T 45 i A i e

e b T A E oy SR P B A
Ak MBS B FAN AR 2 o B FERE 1R
s ORI A B2 E R
A B EA A RE K
AN A HE R S A R RE AT 5E
gt o MBWHRE R F Z EE F
(B > 7% PR 4 2 AR e e o o (L 4R

26. FERE

FFERERINEE i 2B ES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR WA S e A B RE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

27. NET CURRENT ASSETS 27. B & e

(a) BWHE SR - Hib

(a) Trade and other receivables and

prepayments

The general credit term of the Group given to trade
customers is 60 days. A longer credit period may be
granted to customers with long business relationship.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its

outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk.

Included in trade and other receivables and
prepayments are trade receivables, net of impairment
losses, of HK$2,355,000 (2016: HK$5,538,000) and
their aged analysis based on invoice date as at the end

of the reporting period is as follows:

B WG Bk sk B FELASF K JHL

AEHGTHEGEFZ — K
EEBB60H - AL N EFH
THRMEBRIRZ FF &R
ZREY - AEEFEEY R
ASF ) B W R AR ) et B A DA UK
A5 B Ja g -

TEREWCE 5y Wk ~ oAt e U B
O TEAT 3K AL 15 U’ 5
W 2K (48 40 Br W (E K 8
2,355,000% JC (& — /N 4F ¢
5,538,000%5 J6) > A i
AR PR 5 5 H O 2 HR A 4 BT 4n
T

2017 2016

ZE—LHE E-AF

HKS$’ 000 HK$’000

Tt T+t

0 — 3 months T =fMH 1,689 2,979
4 — 6 months A E | 147 216
7 — 12 months &=+ H 519 2,343
2,355 5,538

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$811,000 (2016: HK$4,982,000) which are past
due but not provided for impairment loss. These
receivables relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these receivables is 180 days (2016:
180 days).

Tomson Group Limited ¥ i 4E B A FR /A 7]

A AR 2 FE W 5 iRk A R
8 O 2 11 oA WSO8 R R ek (A s 4R
M 2 BESR R  HERTE(E &
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4,982,000 JC) ° b %5 FE I iR
g LA [ 2 24 8 R AL Bk R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

27. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Trade and other receivables and

27. B E e )
(a) HEWCHE 5 IR ~ Hih

prepayments (Continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

B VAC Bk sk B FELASF K JHL (4

A S {ELA AR 9 M 22 B Wi B ) MR

impaired: K BRI
2017 2016
“F -t _F-ARHF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
T# T ¥ T
61 — 90 days 61290K 145 2,907
91 — 180 days 91%180K 147 216
181 — 365 days 1812365k 519 1,859
Total Gt 811 4,982

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on

trade receivables:

55 Wk 2 SR AR A 2
W) -

2017 2016
“E b ZFAE
HK$’ 000 HK$000
T#c T 45 7T
Balance at beginning of the year AEA) & B 5,361 4,326
Impairment losses recognised on I CE S R K
trade receivables Tl "R 2 W (A s 1R 51 1,367

Recovery of impairment loss T8 A s 4R i [ (2,010) (26)
Exchange adjustments [ 50, ) & 332 (306)
Balance at end of the year e S =3 3,734 5,361

Other receivables with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$3,322,000 (2016: HK$3,105,000) are

individually impaired as the amount is unlikely to be

recovered from the relevant debtors.

B8 B THT AR 253,322,000 JC
(=& — N4 1 3,105,000% 7T)
2 At JEE i R SRS K RT RE B AR
B 5 B W IE] > S AR A B ek

{H o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 25 ¥ A Bk —

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

27. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Trade and other receivables and
prepayments (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful

Vv

27. Vi B & 7 A )

(a) MEWCE HURAK - HAt
B WG Bk sk B FELASF 5wk JEL (4)

JH At R WA SR ok 2 IR SR MR A A

debts on other receivables: %)
2017 2016
L
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T #T T
Balance at beginning of the year EAT) G R 3,105 3,303
Impairment losses recognised A9 At 18 Ui R SR e AR 2
on other receivables VORIEN, 2Rz 10 18
Recovery of impairment loss ol (L M5 48 i [ (30) -
Exchange adjustments e 5, i & 237 (2106)
Balance at end of the year FERLER 3,322 3,105
(b) Inventories b) #8&
Details of inventories are as follows: FEFHBINT -
2017 2016
L
HKS$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Finished goods L0y 180 383
Packaging materials and accessories A0, 25 b B % R A 4,867 4,752
5,047 5,135
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

27. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Trade and other payables and accruals

Included in trade and other payables and accruals are
trade payables of HK$140,123,000 (2016:
HK$572,990,000) and their aged analysis based on

invoice date as at the end of the reporting period is as

27. B E e )

(o)

WA BT 5% Bk ~ HoAth
W A ke sk Je ¥R 92 8 H

TEEAT & 5 Wk ~ oAt e A 1
R AN AR S
M #K140,123,000% o0 (&
— N 4F 1 572,990,000% J6) -
Hp SRR = A

follows:
WREA > Hran R -

2017 2016
—E—tHE —FNFE
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
T T #5C
0 — 3 months T2 = H 4,131 274,548
4 — 6 months e i D 58 33,300
7 — 12 months &=+ —MMA 126 86,935
Over 1 year — 4Rk 135,808 178,207
140,123 572,990

The credit period on purchases is 90 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit

timeframe.

Cash and bank balances

Included in cash and bank balances are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the

functional currency of the entities to which they

(d)

WEZFEEMABIOXR - REH
EL il 5T 5o 5 e o 2L I SR D e
PR A AR BR K3 A 1 20 R
Bl

Bl & B 8T & B

TEB & RATHE BN - ABRH
RSN Z B S

relate:
2017 2016
—E -t ZEF A
HK$’ 000 HK$°000
T #T ARPI
United States Dollars EI0 66,103 55,849
Renminbi ANR¥ 26,130 13,178
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR WA S e A B RE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. kA
Number of shares Amount
ity 8 H &%
2017 2016 2017 2016
—“F—tE “ZT-AF ZF-LE ZZFRF
HK$’ 000 HK$°000
T# T T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each 45 i Ifi {H0.507 JC
2
Authorised %
— Balance as at st January —R=HA—HR
and 31st December +=-H=+—H
ZH B 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid CHIACHR
— Balance as at Ist January —h—H—HZ&% 1,715,059,497 1,588,664,871 857,530 794,333
— Scrip dividend (Note) —UARARE (H2) 170,525,050 126,394,626 85,262 63,197
— Balance as at - t+tZA=+—H
31st December Z bk 1,885,584,547 1,715,059,497 942,792 857,530
Note: Htat -
On 16th June, 2017, 170,525,050 new shares of the Company W FE—LEFEANHTASH RAAF N
were allotted and issued at HK$3.2433 per share to the BEDRMAEMBE SidkE &
shareholders, who elected to receive shares in lieu of cash for the —ANEFTZHA =T —HIEFEEZ FH
interim dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2016. These BB 5 1% A B%3.2433% JC BC 35 K B AT
shares rank pari passu in all respects with the shares then in issue. 170,525,050/ A A w #7 e A o 7% % ik 1y
BLE RF BT > = A W S RS o
On 16th June, 2016, 126,394,626 new shares of the Company W E—NENHTSHE > AAF N
were allotted and issued at HK$1.8943 per share to the BEDBRRAEMBRE 2=
shareholders, who elected to receive shares in lieu of cash for the —HFEFT A=+ —HIEFEEZ B
interim dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2015. These B o % A B 1.8943 1k T i 3% KX B AT
shares rank pari passu in all respects with the shares then in issue. 126,394,626 A= 2% w] T e A o %2 B 1

S I B AT 1 BB = A IR A5 b i o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # £ —&F— L4+ " H =+—H ILFF

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed on 1st June, 2012 (the
“2012 Scheme”). The 2012 Scheme was set up for the
primary purpose to provide incentives or rewards to
selected persons for their contribution to any member of
the Group or any entity in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”).
Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”), the 2012 Scheme shall be valid and effective
until 31st May, 2022. After the expiry of such valid period,
no further options will be offered or granted but in all
other respects the provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect.

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to
(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time
or part time) of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, including any executive director of these companies;
or (ii) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive director) of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; or (iii) any adviser, consultant or customer
of or supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; or (iv) any sharecholder of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options may be granted under the 2012 Scheme is
141,452,380 shares, representing 10% of the Company’s
issued share capital at the date of adoption of the 2012
Scheme, save as otherwise approved by shareholders of the
Company. The total number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted to each participant or grantee (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at the date of grant (the “Individual
Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess of the
Individual Limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval
in general meeting with such participant and his or her
associates abstaining from voting.

29. ik HE S A 22 5

ARNERER —F——FH—H
MR R R AN — HE R RSB
([ZF—4FEFE ) o §t - F
— G EEEMNR A RS
2 N AR IAL T B B 2 R BR
7 48 F AT AT B B 2 R A AT o] B
AT S ([ G ) 2 BJRk
E H 8 5 88 E - i AR A ] i AE
R K g &k A mES
JA (T#EF R I M4 B &k st
B —F-_FFEHAUNEFE
" HFHHA=1T—HIE - AR
e T 4% 1 AS € TR AT 32 iR IR T B
W B RE > M T — AR T B R R
T 45 7 T A A 4 A T A R o

R —F — —AEFHE > EHE /A
PATR N b 452 i B O = (i) A 4 AT
Al Ji B 2% 7 BAT A By £ B M 2 AT
il g B sHE B B OF a2 Bk Bl
W) > LS B A N W Z AL AT
F 5 B3 A ML T A B 2 R BT
T Py BUE AR AL BT S (B
EWLFPATHES) 5 G A EH
AR AT BB 4 B BUAEA] BT BB A 2
ERUE TIPS e LA
o ) AR I B W SR B 2 A
P 5 B(iv) A 5 AL T B B 2 ] B
A AT T BB WA 2 AR TR > BUA
A [ AT AT B 2 ) BT AT BT 5%
MR ATAL MR8 o7 AT 7 A A -

Bk FE 75 AT S A S R R 2 HE v 5 AR
BT — RN TR AR
T AT 2 A A e A0 e v PR 6 4
F5141,452,3808% - B A 2% & it $% 44
T AR EE B B ST RN
10% ° B2 2 B & SR ANERE
% B HE B AR T+ A A
N BB K AR 2 IR (B fE
B AT M I i R ATH &) T LAAT i I
T 85 AT Ml 8% A7 2 A w) B iy 44
B AREEmE RS A
o8 F B AT R BE 2 1% ([E R
EBRY) o i) 2 B K FEAT R B A
18 Bl L R 2 B B - HII 28 48 B SR AE
B OK & B > A B S B K&
HIg 8 N LHAE S L s = -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR WA S e A B RE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 29. e HE X A1 A2 5 (a)

153

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be
made within 28 days from the date on which such offer is
made with a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the
grantee to the Company by way of consideration for the
grant thereof. An option may be exercised at any time
during a period as the Board may determine which shall
not be more than 10 years commencing from the date of
grant of option. Save as determined by the Board and
provided in the offer of the relevant options, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised under the 2012 Scheme. The
subscription price per share of the Company in respect of
any option granted under the 2012 Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer
of the option, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the option; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares on the date of offer.

Under the 2012 Scheme, 4,200,000 shares of the Company
were issued upon exercise of share options in 2013. Under
the 2012 Scheme, no option was granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed in 2017. Therefore, the maximum
number of shares available for issue under the 2012 Scheme
as at 31st December, 2017 was 137,252,380 representing
approximately 7% of the Company’s issued share capital at
the end of the reporting period. There are no outstanding

options granted under the 2012 Scheme during both years.

Tomson Group Limited ¥ i 4E B A FR /A 7]

HRAZ N ZE R P2 SR A% B A E 2 H
B N H AR A R 5 NI
6] A% 8 \) 32 A1 o0 o F B A B g
R hE 2 AAE > R IE A A o] AR [E] o
W 5 T 7E #E S R 7 10 0T TR A e
REAT 0 - M 5% 300 TH) R A5 A 352 0
MEH AL G B T o i F
—AEEE BREER AR E R
W95 A B W 5 RE 4% s IR T R
A 5 Sl 4 5% A I A REAT 1 2 T 6 2K
R R R A R o IR —F— 4
GR DR ORE X EN i A=A
AN B R EE SR ERER
A HE T > MR ER I E S AR KR DA
TEFZEEAE )RR R
HEEH (WMHBEER) LW &
H ¥ A8 2 97 0 A 2 Wi 5 (i) B
B AR R B I RO B A A 2
H £ W 58 i 45 H $ A8 2% i 51 i iy 2
U T 5 K Gii) IR ik % T
R HE B B B T (E -

35 =% — Z4FFH# > 4,200,000/
AN BB T — = AT I
HERERET - ME T — 5
B —F—LF BHECEE -
1708~ 5E &Y 302k %0 I R RE o A
R F—LFE+ A=+ —
H o R =T — ZF 5t #7847
Z BB E EBR 137,252,380/ -
B A 28w iR o W OR 2 B8 AT I A
H7% o R _F— _FFHE > R
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— Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

. B3 S R A B
For the year ended 3lst December, 2017 & —F—HF+ - H=1—H ILF&

30. BORROWINGS 30. fif 3%
2017 2016
“BLE | SBAR
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
T# T-45 70
Short-term borrowings, secured R AR - 100,000
Current portion of long-term R R B A 53 -
borrowings, secured A A 451,435 82,274
Total short-term borrowings 18 FK MR 451,435 182,274
Long-term borrowings, secured R A 345,780 1,607,876
797,215 1,790,150
Carrying amount repayable: R B R 2 AR THI (A -
On demand or within one year ME H R 5 — 4 A 451,435 182,274
More than one year, — 4 L AE R A AR
but not exceeding two years 14,408 465,752
More than two years W 4F DL B R i T4
but not more than five years 72,037 249,665
More than five years AEDLE 259,335 892,459
797,215 1,790,150
The borrowings were secured by assets of the Group as 7 45 P AR R 30 2 R B G
disclosed in Note 39. 391 # FE o
Borrowings were floating-rate borrowings of B 2K 5 T B R R A 3K797,215,000
HK$797,215,000 (2016: HK$1,790,150,000) which g6 (& — 8N4 1 1,790,150,000%
carried interest rates ranging from 5.39% to 5.70% (2016: IG) > R RAF5 39H F5. 70r (—
2.01% to 7.68%) per annum. 7N 2.01EE7.68H)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LR WA S e A B RE
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. ¥EHE B IH
Accelerated  Revaluation Exchange  Dividend
tax of difference  withholding Tax
depreciation  properties AT  recognition tax losses Others Total

g Hf ti 3] RE
BEME  WERE  BER  EEER O DAH  BYER Ji At
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Tin  F#x  T#x  T#x  Tix  T#x Ti#x  Ti#x

Balance as at RZF-~E-A—H
Lt January, 2016 ZER (104,520 (1,936,435 877,920 (50,171) - 79,029 5402 (1,128,779)
(Charge) credit to REEEGZRABRRE
consolidated statement of  (F1135;) f [Fl
profit or loss for the year (11,794) (23,665) 80,510 - - 68,161 (3,105) 110,107
Exchange adjustments ~ [E S8 o 4 6833 139432 (54667) 3081 - (5,166) (354 89359
Balance as at RZZE—REFZA
315t December, 2016 Ea VA ¢ (109481) (1,820,668) 903763 (46,890) - 1404 198 (929,309
(Charge) credit to REFEGERRER
consolidated statement of ~ (F1135;) f
profit or loss for the year (13,183)  (135,990) 107,168 = (93,409)  (146,500) (1,784)  (283,759)
Disposal of subsidiaries HER B - - - - - - (3,907) (3,907)
Exchange adjustmenss (B S (8347 (137481) 65,886 (3,578) - 4476 (4 (79,089)
Balance as at REZ-LEFZA
3lstDecember, 2017 =t —H &R (131,011)  (2,094139) 1,076817  (50468)  (93,469) - (3,792)  (1,296,062)
For the purpose of consolidated statement of financial MEF G AMBRIENS > & T
position presentation, certain deferred tax assets and MR IHE &= R A BT T - D
liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of T £ B 5 e P AR ) AR E o I &5
the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes: BRATHT -
2017 2016
L
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
T# ¢ T ¥ T
Deferred tax assets R E B IH & 281,729 364,538
Deferred tax liabilities % A A TE £ (1,577,791) (1,293,847)
(1,296,062) (929,309)

1 55 Tomson Group Limited ¥ i 4E B A FR /A 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31st December, 2017, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$554.23 million (2016: HK$1,082.71 million)
available for offset against future profits. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$95.40 million
(2016: HK$75.59 million) which will expire within five

years. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by Mainland China subsidiaries
from 1st January, 2008 onwards. At 31st December, 2017,
the aggregate amount of distributable earnings of the
Group’s Mainland China subsidiaries in respect of which
the Group has not provided for dividend withholding tax
amounted to approximately HK$5,101.92 million (2016:
HK$4,616.43 million). No liability has been recognised in
respect of these amounts because the Group is in a position
in control of the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that such differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

31.

9% Wt B A ()

N E—-bLEFTF A=+ —H,> &
2 [ AT P AR K 8 R A s A 2 oK B A
Bt TH s 18 £5554,230,000% o€ (&
— 754 1 1,082,710,0008% I5) o A A
FR AL IE R > 95,400,000 UG (—
T — 754 1 75,590,000% 70) 2 18
S A A i o o At s 1 T 4 PR
W &5 o

Hh B A b B R S i R R A —
H — H R F Br 5 IR (14 B S B
B R _F—LET+H
=t —H > AL MR E SR
BN RN W] I o T Al - B
5,101,920,000%5 & (=& — /N 4F
4,616,430,000% 7)) - fF 5 B B 40
BB o WA A AR B A BE T I
135 0] BT WRF 25 B0 2 W W] M i S5 2= A ]
AN g A ] B R AR ] 5 R Ut I
MRz E K HMER A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 255 e o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

32.

33.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 30 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, share premium, reserves and retained

earnings.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. When necessary, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs

as well as the issue of new debt or the repayment of existing

debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

32. A A b A B

A G B 2 G E YR IR AR 4R
Az A EEY A RREEE [
B3 925 388 48 {125 55 B M i 45 B 2 JBOR
LRS- INEE TS -l 3 -5
B3 T 4F B MEFF AN o

AEEZEARRBEAREHEYE (HH
BLAE A AR O B sE304% 87 ) ) e A 2
FfEa FE A NG A (BE C 8
A B AS ~ B0 ik M~ ol M 2 AR B ik
) o

AN EEE A EA LN E
oL 45 5 8 AR AR K B A% AR
il P B A1 2 S B o WA o B> A AR
PR 5 925 38 IR A JBC UL~ R AT T I S
73 1m0 3 > DA% 3% A7 R 15 B AR 0 B
A B LAYl R A S5

33. & @ T H
(a) & BhTHZ 5

2017 2016
“EF B _F R
HK$’ 000 HK$000
T#x T-45 7T
Financial assets B e
Fair value through profit or loss E N VEFIAEG 2
investments held for trading fREHRE - 49,638
Loans and receivables (including cash £ 7 & B it R 3¢
and bank balances) (BLF5 B 4 M SRAT 45 5%) 6,016,288 3,935,113
Available-for-sale investments ATt E R E 189,228 184,115
Financial liabilities B R
Amortised cost 8 B AR 1,381,670 2,980,661
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for BV 25 3 ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 # £ —&F— L4+ " H =+—H ILFF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, investments held for
trading, trade and other receivables, amounts due
from or due to associates and a joint venture, pledged
bank deposits, restricted bank balance, cash and bank
balances, trade and other payables and borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner. There has been no significant
change to the Group’s exposure to financial risks or
the manner in which it manages and measures the

risks.
Market risks

(i) Currency risk

Certain cash and bank balances of the Group are
denominated in United States Dollars (“USD”)
and Renminbi (“RMB”) which are a foreign
currency other than functional currency (i.e.
HKD) of the relevant group entities (see Note
27(d)). The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

33. @@t TH )
(b) B % Ja\ B 45 PR H B B BUR

AL 2 EE M T R
i ERE - FELE - B
5 oy B S H At R WSO R~ B
W B R AT B A F R — KRB
A SERRE ~ R RAT AR &
BIR il SR AT 4% B - BLE MARAT A
Bk~ FEAH B B MR S K A B A
MR DL R B K o 5% 5 i T A
Z A A A R B A A 4 R o
TXHEIZE M T EARZ
JEL gk B Al AR 5% 55 L 2 BB
W o B I X B 2 5 R
B > DA O RE B IRF AR 2803 3%

BB A o AS 4R T R 2
Fob 765 Ja o B LA B I L By

i 55 & B
(i) B¥u bk

REEE T B & LR
RERTIL R R AR
(7% 51 W) T JF 45 A B 4%
L R 2h RE B W (R
78) FIME (LF5E27(d)) -
A4 ) F A Sl PR RS
WS T BORE o SR > BB
& & B 15 S HE JRL B o Sl A
IEEI R SR
T 36 Y 52K SM A B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ BV 255 e o i

For the year ended 31st December, 2017 #{%E —&F—t4F+ " H =+—H IL4FF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

@)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to currency

risk at the end of the reporting period.

No analysis is presented on HKD against USD
as HKD is pegged to USD and management of
the Company believes the foreign exchange

exposure is insignificant.

The following details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% (2016: 5%) appreciation/depreciation in
HKD against RMB.

. Post-tax profit for the year ended 31st
December, 2017 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$1,307,000 (2016:
HK$659,000)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk relation to fixed-rate borrowings and also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to bank deposits and variable-rate borrowings
(see Note 30 for details of these borrowings). It
is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at
variable-rate of interest so as to minimise the
fair valu